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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

A N b A e s

The Members,
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT of your Company,
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
o ' B (Amount in %)
Particulars T S TEY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21
T Revenue from operations_ ‘ 5 60,36,04,477 | 8,30,03,470_
ii. Other income i "” 5,07,00,00,000 8,30,00,000
iii. Total Income (i+ii) "10,67,36,04,476 16,60,03,470
" Expensesi ; - - . 6/,30,0%, %70 |\ — i —f —
Purchase of Stock-in-trade ' ~ | 5,59,55,47,457 | 8,26,69,969
Finance Cost 4,34,97,89,326 | 13,20,22,400
Other expenses ' " 1,96,82,828 19,79,829
Total Expenses ' - 9 96,50,19,612 | 21,66,72,198
v. Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (iii-iv) ' 70,85,84,865 | (5,06,68,728
" vi. Tax expenses ' 4 B B '
Current tax ‘ B ' 26,38,55,245 | NIL
Deferred tax____ ‘ 1 140,90,21,832) | (1,78,80,736
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (v-vi) | 85,37,51,452 [ (3,27,87,992)
2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:
The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or
dealing in steel and its allied products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, res, minerals
and mineral substance, alloys and metal scraps of all kinds. The Company earned
revenue of Rs. 5,60,36,04,477/- from trading of steel and Rs. 5,07,00,00,000/- from
interest for the financial year under review. The Company has reported net profit after
tax of Rs.85,37,51,452/- in FY 2021-22 as compared to the Loss of Rs. 3,27,87,992 in
FY 2020-21.
3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE O‘F BU_SINESS:
There were no changes in the nature of business during the period under review.
4. CI'-I.ANGE OF THE REGISTERED OFFICE

e N e S

The members of the Company at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 19th
October,; 2021 approved the shifting of the registered office of the Company from NCT
of Delhi to the state of Maharashtra. The Company had filed necessary applications with
the Regional Director, Northern Region, Delhi (“RD"). The RD, by order dated
20.12.2021 has approved the application of the Company. The Registered office of the
Company stands shifted to ISW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai
400 051 w.e.f. 10% January, 2022. ’
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DIVIDEND:

To maintain the liquidity of funds for meeting the future financial requirements of the
Company, the Board of Directors has decided not to declare any dividend for the financial
year 2021-22.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (j) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013: )
L O

Your directors do not propose to carry any amount to any reserves during the period
under review,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT:

SILATEMENIS RELAL A e —,—— e —————

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments
which could affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company and date of this report.

DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits within the meaning of section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,
2014 and the rules made thereunder. '

SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.17000,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Seventeen Thousand Crores Only) divided into 1200,00,00,000 (One Thousand Two
Hundred Crores only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (Rupees Ten only) and
500,00,00,000 (Five Hundred Crores only) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each. The Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 6100,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Sixty-One Hundred Crore only) divided into 610,00,00,000 (Six Hundred Ten Crore)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

Pursuant to the subscription and shareholder’s agreement between the Company, ISW
Steel and JSW Shipping, JSW Steel has subscribed to certain OFCDs of the Company.
As per the terms of OFCDs, including revisions thereto, JSW Steel has the option to
convert the OFCDs into equity shares at any time at the option of JSW Steel,
Accordingly, JSW Steel has exercised the option of conversion of 4,100,000,000 OFCDs
held by JSW Steel in the Company into 4,100,000,000 equity shares of the Company of
face value of Rs. 10 each on October 1, 2021. Pursuant to the conversion, JSW Steel
holds 83.28% equity in the Company and JSW Shipping holds 16.72% equity in the
Company. Subsequent to the aforesaid conversion, the Company has become a
subsidiary of JSW Steel effective from October 01, 2021,

Issue of Equity Shares:

During the year under review, the Company has issued 410,00,00,000 no. of equity
shares of Rs. 10/- upon conversion of OFCDs to JSW Steel Limited.
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‘ Warrants:
The Company had issued 350,00,00,000 warrants having face value of Rs. 10/- at an
issue price of Rs. 0.02/- each to JSW Steel Limited and JSW Shipping & Logistics Pvt
Limited on 24% March, 2021.

Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures:

During the period under review, the entire Optionally Fully Convertible debentures held
by JSW Steel Ltd. had been converted into Equity shares of the Company.

Subsidiary of JISW Steel Limited:

Pursuant to the conversion of OFCDs, JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSLPL
holds 16.72% equity in the Company. Subsequent to the aforesaid conversion, the
Company has now become a Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited.

a) Issue of Equity Shares with-DifferentiaI Rights
The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence the company
is not required to furnish any information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the
Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
b) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and
hence the company is not require to furnish any information as per provisions of Section
54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014.
c) Issue of Employee Stock Options
The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme
during the year under review and hence the company is not require to furnish any
information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a) COMPOSITION & CONSTITUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of your Company currently comprises of five Directdrs, namely Mr. Anil
Kumar Singh (DIN: 02059903), Mr. Divyakumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679), Mr. Manoj
Kumar Mohta (DIN: 02339000), Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407) and Dr. (Mrs.)
Rakhi Jain (DIN: 07138042).

During the period under review, Mr. Bhushan Prasad, Mr. Sriram K.S.N. and Mr.
Sundeep Jain resigned from directorship w.e.f. 01.12.2021. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh
(DIN: 02059903), Mr. Divyakumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679), Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta
(DIN: 02339000), Mr, Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407) and Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain
(DIN: 07138042) were appointed as Additiona! Director w.e.f. 01.12,2021.
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11,

Mr. Anil Kumar Singh (DIN: 02059903), Mr. Divyakumar Bhair (DIN: 08568679), Mr.
Manoj Kumar Mohta (DIN: 02339000), Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407) and Dr.
(Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (DIN: 07138042) being Additional Director on the Board of the
Company hold office upto date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received notice from a member of the Company proposing their candidature. at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

b) BOARD MEETING & ATTENDANCE:

During the period under review, meeting of the Board of Directors was held 11 times
on 19.07.2021, 21,08.2021, 07.09.2021, 13.09.2021, 21.09.2021, 01.10.2021,
19.10.2021, 23.11.2021, 01.12.2021, 19.01.2022 and 08.03.2022. The detail of the
participation of Directors there at is enumerated as below:

©

Sr. Name of Director No. of Meeting held [ No. of Meeting
No. during tenure Attended
1. Mr. Bhushan Prasad 09 09
2. Mr. Sriram KSN 09 09
3. Mr. Sundeep Jain 09 09
4. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh 02 02
5. Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta 02 02
6. Mr. Divyakumar 02 02
Vimalkumar Bhair

7. Mr. Anunay Kumar 02 02
8. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain 02 02

The intervening gap between the Board meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

c) DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN: 01647407) and Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (DIN: 07138042) were
appointed as Additional Director in the category of Independent Directors of the
Company w.e.f. 01.12.2021. The Company has received the necessary declaration
from each of the Independent Directors in accordance with Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as laid out in
Section 149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors had 01 (One) Meeting during
" the period under review.

d) CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the period under review, Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni was appointed as chief
Executive Officer of the Company and Mr. Mohit Goyal was appointed as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company w.e.f. 19.01.2022. Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra continues as
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the company.

COMPOSITION OF VARIOUS BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Earlier Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Bhushan Prasad, Mr. Sriram KSN, Mr.
Sundeep Jain. The Audit Committee was reconstituted on 01.12.2021, Reconstituted
Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Divyakumar Bhair as Chairman, Mr. Anunay Kumar
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and Dr. Rakhi Jain as member of Audit Committee. The Board has approved the
charter for the functioning of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as
the Secretary to the Committee.

During the period under review, meeting of the Audit Committee was held 05 times
on 19.07.2021, 21.09.2021, 23.11.2021, 01.12.2021 and 19.01.2022. The detail of
the participation of Directors there at is enumerated as below:

Sr. | Name of Director No. of Meeting held | No. of Meeting

No. during tenure Attended

1. | Mr. Bhushan Prasad 04 ' 04

2. Mr. Sriram KSN 04 04

3. Mr. Sundeep Jain 04 04

4, Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar 01 01
Bhair

5. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01

6. Dr (Mrs) Rakhi Jain 01 01

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Earlier Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of Mr. Bhushan Prasad,
Mr. Sriram KSN, Mr. Sundeep Jain. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
reconstituted on 01.12.2021. Reconstituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprises of Mr. Anunay Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Dr. Rakhi
Jain as member of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the
functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Committee. .
During the period under review, meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee was held 02 times on 01.12.2021 and 19.01.2022. The detail of the
participation of Directors thereat is enumerated as below:

Sr. | Name of Director No. of Meeting held | No. of Meeting

No. during tenure Attended

1. Mr. Bhushan Prasad 01 ' 01

2. - | Mr. Sriram KSN 01 01

3. Mr. Sundeep Jain 01 01

4, Mr, Anil Kumar Singh 01 01

5. Mr. Anunay Kumar 01 01

6. Dr (Mrs) Rakhi Jain 01 01

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Earlier Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of Mr. Bhushan Prasad,
Mr. Sriram KSN, Mr. Sundeep Jain. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was

reconstituted on 01.12.2021. Reconstituted Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee comprises of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairman, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh and Mr.
Anunay Kumar as member of the Committee. The Board has approved the charter for
the functioning of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.
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During the period under review, meeting of the CSR Committee of Board of Directors
was held 01 times on 21.09.2021. The detail of the participation of Directors there at
is enumerated as below:

Sr. | Name of Director No. of Meeting held [No. of Meeting
No. during tenure Attended
1. | Mr. Bhushan Prasad 01 L , 01
2. Mr. Sriram KSN 01 _ ‘ _ 01
3. | Mr :S.und_ee'p‘Jain ' o : 01
iv. Finance Committee .
The Finance Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh
as Chairman, Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta and Mr. Divyakumar Bhair as member of the
Committee. The Board has approved the charter for the functioning of the Committee.
The Company Secretary-acts as the Secretary to the Committee. -
V. The Board of Directors constituted Risk Management Committee & Stakeholders

Relationship Committee in its Board meeting held on May 24, 2022,

12. HOLDING & SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

Pursuant to the conversion of OFCDs, JSW Steel Limited holds 83.28% equity and JSLPL
holds 16.72% equity in the Company. Subsequent to the aforesaid conversion, the
Company has now become a Subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. -

Bhushan Power & Steel Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. March
26, 2021.

During the period under review, West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited
has become whoily owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. 23.11.2021 and post
amalgamation ceased to exist on May 07, 2022,

Presently, the Company neither has any Joint Venture or an Associate company.

13.NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME_OR CEASED TO BE

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the period under review, West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited
has become wholly owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. 23.11.2021.

During the period under review, the Company has acquired entire equity shareholding
in West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited from Magnificient Merchandise
and Advisory Services Private Limited. Consequently, West Waves Maritime & Allied
Services Private Limited became wholly owned subsidiary of your Company w.e.f.
23.11.2021.

The Company had filed an application with Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai
for approval of Amalgamation Scheme of amalgamation of West Waves Maritime & Allied
Services Private Limited with the Company. Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai
vide its order dated May 06, 2022 has approved the Amalgamation Scheme of the
Company and accordingly West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited has

6
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been amalgamated with the Company w.e.f. appointed date i.e. December 01, 2021
and accordingly ceased to be wholly owned subsidiary.

No other companies have become or ceased to be subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

14.PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The members may refer to the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report
as required under the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
financial position of all Subsidiaries.

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary
Company in Form AOC-1 is given in ‘Annexure-A’ to this Report.

15. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

a) Overview

The Company has a robust system of internal control, commensurate with the size
and nature of its business and complexity of its operations.

b) Internal Control
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control.

c) Internal Audit

The Company has a strong and independent internal audit function that inculcates
global best standards and practices of international majors into the Indian operations.
The Internal Audit team consists of professionally qualified accountants and engineers
at the group level. The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

d) Audit Plan and Execution

At start of the year, the Internal Audit Department prepares an Annual Audit Plan
after considering Business and Process Risks. The frequency of the audit is decided
by risk ratings of areas/functions. The audit plan is carried out by the internal team
and reviewed periodically to include areas that have assumed significant importarice
in line with the emerging industry trend.

e) Internal Financial Controls

As per Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors have an overall
responsibility for ensuring that the Company has implemented a robust system and
framework of internal financial cantrols.

The Company has already developed and implemented a framework for ensuring
internal controls over financial reporting. During the year, controls were tested and
no reportable material weakness in design and effectiveness was observed.

7
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16. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’' REPORT:
A. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109574W)
has been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 01t Annual
General Meeting for a period of 5 years until the conclusion of 6 Annual General
Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2024.

Comment on Auditors’ Report:

The report of the Auditors along with notes to Schedules forms part of this Annual
Report. The observations made by the Auditors in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

The Auditors’ Report for the year under review. does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 requiring disclosure in Board’s Report.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, Board of Directors of the Company in their
Meeting held on December 01, 2021 had appointed M/s. Sunil Agarwal & Co.,
Practicing Company Secretaries, as secretarial auditor to conduct a secretarial audit
of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2021-22 is annexed to this report in
form MR-3 (Annexure — B1l), The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2021-
22 of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is
also annexed to this report in form MR-3 (Annexure — B2).

The Board, at its meeting held on May 24, 2022 has on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee appointed M/s Sunil Agarwal & Co., Practicing Company
Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the financial year 2022-23.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arms’ length basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of contracts or arrangement as prescribed in Form
AOC-2 attached as Annexure - C,

Suitable disclosure on related .party transactions, as required by the Accounting
Standards has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements.

8
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19.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

During the year under review, the Company had filed an application with Regional
Director, Western Region, Mumbai for approval of Amalgamation Scheme of West Waves
Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited with the Company. Regional Director, Western
Region, Mumbai vide its order dated May 6, 2022 has approved the Amalgamation
Scheme of the Company and accordingly West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private

" Limited has been amalgamated with the Company w.e.f. appointed date i.e. December

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

01, 2021.

No other orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Disclosures pertaining to particulars of employees as required in terms of the Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the’

Company and hence, the disclosure on particulars of employees in terms of the aforesaid
Section and Rules is not attached to the Directors' Report. -

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:;

Being part of JSW group, your Company follows an Anti-Sexual Harassment JSW Group
Policy in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) has been set up at group level to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received during the FY
2021-22,

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has in place a mechanism in the form of the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil
Mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the risk
assessment and mitigation plans and periodical reviews to ensure that the critical risks
are mitigated by the management. ‘

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the website of the Company.
Annual report on Corporate Social responsibility is enclosed as Annexure - D.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The applicable Secretarial 'Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been complied with by the
Company during the financial year under review.

9
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26.

27.

28.

29.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of
the Independent Directors individually as well as an evaluation of the working of the
Committees of the Board. The performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried
out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The performance evaluation of the
Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent
Directors. .

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QOUTGO:

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, particulars under section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding the conservation of energy, technology
absorption are not applicable. '

There were no foreign exchange earnings / outgo during the year under review.

COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copy
of the Annual Return of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the
Act read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
is placed on the website of the Company and are accessible at the web-link:
https://www.jsw.in/groups/piombino-steel-limited.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts; the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) such accounting policies have been applied consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities; .

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

e) proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

10
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APPRECIATION:

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for co-operation and assistance
received from State Govt. of Orissa, Government authorities, financial institutions,
banks, vendors, customers, shareholders and other business associates during the year
under review. The Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation
for the committed services by all the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Ltd.

sd/-

Anil Kumar Singh.

Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: May 24, 2022 DIN: 02059903
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ANNEXURE A

FORM NO. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

(in Lakhs)
Sl. No. 1 (One) 2 (Two)
Name of the subsidiary Bhushan Power & | West Waves Maritime
- Steel Limited & Allied Services Pvt.
: Ltd (WWMASPL)*
The date since when subsidiary | 26.03.2021 23.11,2021
was acquired
Financial Year ending on 31.03.2022 31.03.2022
Reporting Currency INR . INR
Exchange Rate on the last day of | N.A N.A.
the financial year
Share capital 10,000.00
Reserves & Surplus 1177291.00
Total Assets 2223250.00
Total Liabilities 2223250.00
Investments 161.00
Turnover 2140902.00
Profit/(Loss) before tax 425882.00
Provision for tax NIL
Profit/(Loss) after tax 425882.00
Proposed Dividend Nil .
% of shareholding 100.00 100.00

* The WWMASPL was acquired on 23 November 2021 and got amalgamated with Piombino Steel Limited w.e.f,
Appointed date i.e., 01 December 2021 pursuant to order dated 6 May 2022 of Regional Directorate (WR) of
Ministry of Corporate Affairs thereby approving the scheme of amalgamation.

Notes:
1. No subsidiary is yet to commence operations.

2. No subsidiary has been liquidated or sold during the year.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Ltd.

Ssd/-

Anil Kumar Singh

Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: May 24, 2022 DIN: 02059903
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SUNIL AGARWAL & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

124-125, Ostwal Ornate, Building No. 1, 'A’ Wing, Opp. Jain Temple, Bhayander (East),

Thane-401105, web: www.cssunilagarwal.com
Email: sunilcs_mumbai@rediffmail.com, agarwales mumbai@yahoo.co.in

To,

The Members,

PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED

JSW Centre,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051 '

My Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My

~ responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, we believe that the processes and
practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company. I relied on the statutory report provided by the Statutory Auditor of the company for the
financial year ending 31 March, 2022.

Wherever required I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliénce of the provision and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Sunil Agarwal & Co.
Company Secretaries

SUNIL SHIVKUMAR
AGARWAL

Sunil Agarwal
(Proprietor)
FCS No. 8706
C.P. No. 3286
Place: Mumbai
Date: 13/05/2022

UDIN number : F008706D000315221
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v COMPANY SECRETARIES
124-125, Ostwal Ornate, Building No. 1, 'A" Wing, Opp. Jain Temple, Bhayander (East),
Thane-401105, web: www.cssunilagarwal.com
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members, :
PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITE

JSW Centre,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)
Mumbai 400051

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate  practices by Piombino Steel Limited bearing CIN
U27320MH2018PLC3746353 (hereinafter called "the company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon. '

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 by and
large appears to have complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-process and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:-

1. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by
me and explanations furnished and representations made to me by the Company, its officers and
agents, 1 hereby report that the Company has complied with the provisions of The Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Memorandum and Atrticles of Association of
the Company with regard to:

(8  Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries

therein; .

(b)  Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other
authorities;

(¢)  Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of
Companies; '

(d)  Notice of Board meetings of Directors in compliance of the "ACT "as well as Secretarial
Standard - 1 (SS 1);

(¢)  Meetings of Directors and passing of circular resolutions;

(f)  Notice and convening of General Meetings held Secretarial Standard — 2 (SS - 2).

(g) Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings and General Meetings;
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(h)y  Approvals of the Board of Directors, Members and government authorities, wherever
required;

@ Constitution of the Board of Directors and appointment, retirement and reappointment
of Directors including Managing Directors and Executive Directors, Independent Directors.

6] Payment of remuneration to Directors, Managing Director and Executive Directors;

(k)  Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors; '

()  Report of the Board of Directors;

(m) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules there under.

I further report that:

(@  The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and
concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships  in  other
Companies and interest in other entities;

(b)  The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect to their eligibility of
appointment, their being independent, compliance with the code of conduct for Directors
and;

(¢)  The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of the Act
where necessary;

(d)  There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company
during the year under review under the Companies Act, 2013 regulations and guidelines
under these Acts.

1 further report that

) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) as amended from time to time and
the rules made there under as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the company
is an unlisted public Company.

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time and the Regulations and Bye-laws
framed there under are not applicable, as the Company is an unlisted public Company.

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended from time to time and the rules and
regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings are not applicable during the period of
Audit;

(iv)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) '

(a.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the
Company is an unlisted public company.

(b.) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable as the
company is an unlisted public company.

- (c.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended as from time to time are not applicable
as the company is an unlisted public company :
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(d.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the company is
an unlisted public company. . )

(e.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the company is
an unlisted public company;

(f.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 and dealing with client are not applicable, as the
company is an unlisted public company;

(g.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 are not applicable, as the company is an unlisted public company; and;

(h.) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the company is an unlisted
public company;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable ciauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India have been
generally complied with by the Company to the extent applicable during the year under review;

4, I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adegquate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for secking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

5. I further report that in my opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as provided by the management
hereunder;

1.Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 & Rules Made there under
2. Professional Tax Act
3.Shop & Establishment Act
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I further report that during the year under review the company has got the request for conversion
of 410,00,00,000 Fully Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10/- each, issued to JSW Steel
Limited, into 410,00,00,000 equity Shares of Rs. 10/- at par and accordingly 410,00,00,000 equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- has been allotted on October 01, 2022, consequently company had become
subsidiary company of JSW Steel Limited.

I further report that during the year under review, Company has made an application to Regional
Director, Northern Region, New Delhi for shifting of Registered Office of the Company from NCT
of Delhi to State of Maharashtra for administrative convenience and better control. Regional
Director, Northern Region vide its order dated December 20, 2021 had accorded their approval for
shifting of Registered Office from NCT of Delhi to State of Maharashtra and accordingly the
Registered Office of the Company has been shifted to Mumbai in the State of Mabharashtra: w.e.f.
January 10, 2022.

I further report that during the year under review, the Company has acquired 100% shareholding
of West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited from Magnificent Merchandise And
Advisory Services Private Limited consequently the West Waves Maritime & Allied Services
Private Limited has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company w.e.f24.11.2021.

I further report that during the year under review, the Company had filed an application with
Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai for approval of Amalgamation Scheme of West Waves
Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited with the Company. Regional Director, Western Region,
Mumbai vide its order dated May 6, 2022 has approved the Amalgamation Scheme of the Company
and accordingly West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited has been merged with the
Company w.e.f. May 7, 2022.

I further report that during the year under review a loan of Rs.2,500 crores, taken from West
Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary Company, subsists
at the end of financial year March 31, 2022, however it has become cancelled due to amalgamation
of West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited with the company, pursuant to approved
amalgamation'scheme.

I further report that during the year under review the company has not given any loans or given
guarantees to other bodies corporate or persons falling under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Act.

I further report that during the year under review, the Company has adopted new sets of Articles
of Association of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(5) and 14 of Companies Act,
2013.
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For Sunil Agarwal & Co.
Company Secretaries

SUNIL
SHIVKUMAR”

AGARWAL "

Sunil Agarwal
(Proprietor)
FCS No.8706
C.P. No. 3286
Place: MUMBAI
Date: 13/05/2022
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Office No. 5, 5" floor, ®
AC Market Building CHS Litd.,
. Tardeo Road, Mumbai— 400 034
S. Swiivasan & Cs.. - Tel no.: 022- 2351 7505
Company Secretaries ‘Mobile: +91 93210 25730

E-mail: mumbaissandco@yahoo.com

FORM NO. MR- 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204( 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED
4th Floor, A-2, NTH Complex

Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg USO Road,
Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi
DL 110 067,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED
bearing CIN: U27100DL1999PLC108350 (hereinafter called the “Company™). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis. for evaluating the corpoi=te
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial _
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 by and large appears to have complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has pfoper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 315 March, 2022, according to the
provisions of ’

i.  The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules made there under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, (‘SCRA') and the rules made there
under (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review).

Registered office address: 244 Floor, Evalappan Mansion, 188/87, Habihuilah Road, T, Napar, Chernisie 600 N17.
Mobile: +91 9841092661 | E-mail: 58 rihis 0 gmﬂﬂmm Ay :




This forms part of our secretarial audit report of BPSL dated 22.04.2022

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under,

iv. ~ Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Irvestment Cverseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings.

v.  The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, ©992; (‘'SEBI Act’} are not applicable to the Company during the peric;, 7 under
review as the Company is an unlisted company.

vi.  All other relevant applicable laws including thoss fpe(:if“ ically applicable to the
Company, a list of which has been provided by the maragement. The examination and
reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems
and processes are in place to monitor and ensure compimnce with those laws, Further,
besides physical verification of the existence of compliance we have also reliad on the
specific duly filled in and signed questionnaire submitted to us by the Company in
respect of compliance under various applicable laws.

We have also examined comphance with thp applicable clauses of ‘the fmwwmg
Secretarial Standards:

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Imtimtc of Company Secretaries of India
SS- 1 & SS- 2 has been generally complied with by the’ Com pany during the financial year
under review. '

During the period under review the Company has generally co‘mphed with the prov1310ns of
the Act, Rules, Reguldtmns, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the peried under
review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act,

» Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days.in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
befcre fhe meeting and for meaningful partlcnpatlon dfthe meetmg,

¢ Decisions at the meetmgs of the Beard of Directors were carried through based on
majority and’ there were no dissenting views by any M ember of the Boald durmg the
year undel revxew =ty
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This forms part of our secretarial audit report of BPSL dated 22.04.2022

We further report that,

Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and on the
review of the compliance reports of Company Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer/ Whole-time
Director taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
- of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines. :

The compliance by-the Cormpany of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this
Audit sinee the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other
designated professionals.

We further report that, during the audit period, there are no specific events/ actions
occurred which had any major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc.

For 8. Swuwasan & Cs.
Company Secretaries

‘) / ; pStinivasan
Practiciyg Cczmpzﬁny Secretary

Place: Mumbai = BCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748
Date: 22.04.2022 il UDI}/:FQOZZSﬁDOO@lS3885
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Annexure A

This forms part of our secretarial audit report of BPSL dated 22.04.2022

To,

The Members,

BHUSHAN POWER & STEEL LIMITED
4th Floor, A-2, NTH Complex

Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg USO Road,
Qutab Institutional Area, New Delhi

DL 110 067.
Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records i3 the responsibility of the management of the
. Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records hased on
our audit,

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurdance about the correctness of the contents of the secrérgrial
records. The verification was done on fest basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in -
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation .about the
compliance of iaws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, niies,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limit:.d to
the verification of procedures on test basis, - '

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the -
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For 8. Swiutvacan & s,
Company Secretaries

;T T
{ S. Srinivasan
ﬂg Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai : FCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748 -
Date: 22.04.2022 : UDIN: F002286D000183885
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED
JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

FORM NO. AOC-2

ANNEXURE C

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third

proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: -

No | Name(s) | Nature of | Duration Salient Justificatio| date(s | Amoun | Date on which
of the |contracts / of the terms of n for ) of t paid the special
related |arrangeme |contracts the entering | appro as resolution was

party and nts / / contracts into such | val by | advanc passed in
nature of |transaction |arrangem or contracts | the es, if |general meeting
relationsh s ents / arrangeme or Board any as required
ip transactio nts or arrangeme under first
n transaction nts or proviso to
s including | transaction section 188
the value,
_ if any
(a) (b) ©) (d) (&) () (9) (h)
(Nil)
(All contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties were at arm’s length basis)

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:-
No. | Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Balient terms of| date(s) of Amount paid as
the related contracts / the contracts the contracts or| approval by advances, if
party and arrangements / arrangements the Board any
nature of / transactions | arrangements |or transactions
relationship / transactions | including the
value, if any
1. JSW Steel Purchase of Annual Rs.663.65 Cr Audit Nil
Limited steel products Committee
approval
. dt.19.07.2021
2. JSW Steel Trading of Annual Rs.341.04 Cr Audit Nil
Coated steel products Committee
Products . approval
Limited dt.19.07.2021

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 24, 2022
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For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel Ltd.

Sd/-

Anil Kumar Singh

Chairman

DIN: 02059903
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED
JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

Annexure D to Directors Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

(Pursuant to Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

CSR policy, reflecting ethos of the Company, broad areas of CSR interest and overview
of activities, proposes rural focus and woman empowerment.

Policy states the list of activities/projects undertaken/to be undertaken in future.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SI.° | Name of Director | Designation / Number of Number of
No. Nature of meetings of meetings of CSR
Directorship CSR Committee
Committee | attended during the
held during year
the year .
1. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain Chairman 01 00*
2. Mr.  Anil  Kumar Member 01 0o*
Singh
3. | Mr. Anunay Kumar Member 01 : 00*

*During the period under review, meeting of the CSR Committee of Board of Directors was
held on 21.09.2021. At that time, CSR Committee comprises of Mr. Bhushan Prasad, Mr.
Sriram K.S.N. & Mr. Sundeep Jain and they had attended it. The CSR Committee was
reconstituted on 01.12.2021 and now comprised of Dr. Rakhi Jain as Chairman, Mr. Anil
Kumar Singh and Mr. Anunay Kumar as member of the Committee.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company -

https://www.jsw.in/groups/piombino-steel-limited

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
if applicable (attach the report). NA

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7Aof the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any.

Sl. No. [Financial Year Amount available for set-Amount required to be set-
off from precedingoff for the financial year, if
financial years (in Rs) any (in Rs)

) NIL '
Total I I

6. Average net profit/ (loss) of the company as per section 135(5): Nil

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit/ (loss) of the company as per section 135(5): NIL
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED
JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous

financial

years. NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). Nil

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for | yransferred to Unspent |under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
. the . CSR Account as per section 135(5).
Financial section 135(6).
Year. (in
Rs.)
’ Amount. Date of |Name of the] Amount. | Date of transfer.
transfer. Fund
- N.A.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

1) (2) | (3) | (4) (5) |(6) (72) (8) (9) (10) | (11)
Sl.{Nam |Item| Local |Location|Proj| Amount | Amount | Amount [Mode Mode of
No| e of (from| area | of the |ect |allocated| spentin |transferr| of |Implementation -

the | the | (Yes/ | project. |dur| for the the edto |Impl Through
Proje; list | No). atio; project | current | Unspent ([eme| Implementing
ct. of n. | (in Rs.). | financial CSR ntati Agency
activi Stat|Dist Year (in | Account | on - (Nam CSR
ties e. [rict. Rs.). for the Direci ¢ |Registration
in project as| t number.
Sche per (Yes
dule Section |/No)
VII 135(6) .
to (in Rs.).
the
Act.
NIL —
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year: '
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl.|Name| Item |Local|l Location of [Amount Mode of Mode of
No.| of the from the| area | the project. | spent [implementation|implementation -
Project| list of |(Yes/ for the - Direct Through
activities| No). project| (Yes/No). implementing
in (in agency.
schedule State.[District.| Rs.)- Name.| CSR
VII to registration
the Act. number.
NIL
| Total | | l | l I

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
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- PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED

JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

(e) Amount sbent on Impact Assessment, if'appIicabIe: NIL
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8t+8d+8e): NIL
(g9) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

company as per section 135(5)

sl Particular ~ Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the

_(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-
()]

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any

v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding
financial years [(inN-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. |Preceding | Amount Amount |Amount transferred to| Amount
No. | Financial ftransferred| spent in any fund specified |remaining
Year. |[to Unspent the under Schedule VII as to be
CSR reporting | per section 135(6), if | spentin
Account | Financial » any. succeeding
under Year (in | Name |Amount| Date of | financial
section Rs.).  |of the|(in Rs).transfer.| Years. (in
135 (6) (ln Fund RS-)
Rs.)
. NIL _
| Total | I I I I I

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

W) (2 | (3) 4) (5) (6) 7y | (®) | (9
Sl [Project| Name | Financial | Project | Total | Amount Cumulative| Status of
No.| ID. | of the Year in |duration.| amount [spent on| amount the
Project.| which the allocated| the spent at | project -
project was for the | project [the end of Completed
commenced. project | in-the | reporting |/Ongoing.
(in Rs.). reporting| Financial
Financial| Year. (in
Year (in Rs.)
Rs).
NIL
| Total | I | I I I I

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NA
(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
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PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED

JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset). :
11.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per section 135(5).: NA

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors of Piombino Steel ‘Limited

sd/- sd/-
Anil Kumar Singh Dr. Rakhi Jain
Director (Chairman CSR
. Committee)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT |

To the Members of Piombino Steel Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Piombino Steel Limited ("the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial
statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standaione financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards.on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section (10}
of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
~ express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Standalone financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In sub-section (5) of Section 134 of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In Indla,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibllity also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internatl financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

~ misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In ‘preparing the standalone  financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concermn basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. .

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance i5 8 high level of assurance but is niot a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit"
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3} of Section 143 of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial

controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtalned, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abiiity to continue as a going cancern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our concluslons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Compaaglrerase to continue as a
going concemn,
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statermnents, including

the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presgntatlon.

g other matters, the planned scope

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amon
in Internal control

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies
that we identify during our audit, '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, refated safeguards.

Other Matters
The Regional Director, Western Region vide his order dated May 06, 2022 has approved the scheme of

Amalgamation of West Waves Maritime and Aliled Services private Limited (“WWMASPL") with the Company
and thelr respective Shareholders under section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from December
01, 2021, As described in note 30 of the standalone financial statements, effect of the merger of West
Waves Maritime and Allied Services private Limited (“WWMASPL”) with the Company has peen accounted
retrospectively for all periods presented (i.e. with effect from pecember 01, 2021) being a common control
transaction. Accordingly, financial figures of previous year are strictly not comparable.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central

Govermnment of india in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A"
a statement on.the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. '

5. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Gtatement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report -are in
agreement with the books of account. '

d. In our opinion, the aforesald standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,.
2015, as amended. - .

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act. :

£, With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, with reference to these standalone  financial
statements refer to our separate Report in ~Annexure B”, Our report expresses an unmadified opinion
on thrc:j adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting;

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of the Act, as amended:
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The Company has not paid / not provided for managerial remuneration in the books of accounts.

Accordingly, provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rufe (11)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2015, in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in

the standalone financial statements;

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses; and

Wl. There were no amounts which were required to pe transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

v, (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any other persons Or entities,
including foreign entity (“Intermedlaries"), with the understanding, whether rgcorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shali,

. directly or indirectly lend or invést in other persons of entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Company (“Uttimate Beneficlaries”) or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like to oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are either material either individually or in aggregate) have peen received by the
Company from any person or entity, inciuding foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shali,

. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties
or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Basedon the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate on the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representation under sub-cluse (i) and (it) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement. '

v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 1

o
arth P Patel -

partner

M. No.172670 S
UDIN: 22172670AKZURK3490
place: Mumbai

Date: May 24,2022
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Piombino Steel Limited of even date)

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

() (@) (A) TheCompany does not have property, plant and equipment’s and accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 (1) (a) (A) of the Order Is not applicable.
(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company does not have any Intanglble assets and accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3 (1) (a) (B) of the Order is not applicable,

(b) The Company does not have property, plant and equipment’s and accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 (1) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (1) (c) of the Order Is nat applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

{i1) (a) The Company does not have inventories and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (ii) (a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital fimits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise. :

(i) (a) The Company has made investment in one company, not granted secured/ unsecured
foans/advances in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships, other parties. .
(b) Theln respect of the aforesaid investment made, in our opinion, prima facie, 1s not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest,

(c) The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 (iii) {c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 (iii) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company has not given loans/advances In nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 (ili) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f} There were no joans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year to
promoters/related parties. :
i (iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, or provided guarantees under section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with
" the provisions-of Sections 186 of the Act In respect of the investments made,
(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to Section
; 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notlified.
| (vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Act for any of the products by the Company. Accordingly=epqrting under paragraph
3(vi) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company. G
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(vit)y (3) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the cornplam/
examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authontfes
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, fncome tax, service

tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the

information and explanations given to Us, there are no undisputed amounts payable In respect of

income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a year of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth
tax, service tax, goods and service tax, income tax, duty of excise, duty of excise, value added tax,
and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
(vit)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account,

ords of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations

(ix)y (@ According to the rec ;
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or inl the

payment of interest to any jender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial
insttution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by
way of the term loans in the previous year have been applied by the Company during the year for
the purpose for which it was raised. )

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company
has niot obtained any short-term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3
(ix) (d) is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
Finandal Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of Its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. '

(x) (8) TheCompany has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

P—

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) {(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have nelther come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the Management. '

(b) . During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out In

' accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in Indla, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, a report under sub-clause (12) of S/eg_‘@:lg? of the Act, in Form
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*ADT-4, was not required to be filed, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (1) (b) of the Order Is
- not applicable to the Company.

(€

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out In
arccordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in Indla, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower
complaints have been recelved during the year by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xi){c) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

(xit)  As the Company Is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under clause 3(xIl) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company. '

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed
by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
app\lcaple accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The internal audit of the Company is covered under the group internal audit pursuant to which an
internal audit is carried out every year. In our opinion, the Company’s internal audit system is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the year under audit have been considered by us.
(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons
- connected with him. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. ]
(xvi) (3) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvl) (@) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) {b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(¢} The Company is not a Core Investment Comnpany (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) We have been informed by the management that as per the definition of Group under Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company
(CIC) which is registered and three CICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve
Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group.
‘xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year but has cash loss amounting to
» Rs.5,06,68,728 in the immediately preceding financial year. '

xvili} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under
clause (xviil) is not applicable to the Company.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also
refer Notes to the Standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabiiities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
year of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting Is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due

within a year of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due. RS
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(xx) (a)

(b)

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not app
statements, Accordingly, no comment in respe

Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing

le VII to the Companies Act in compliance
reporting under

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedu
with second proviso to sub-section (5)-of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordinglys
clause 3(xx)(a) of Order is not applicable for the year.
TheffE are no unspent-amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with
second-proviso:to sub-section (6).0f Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(b) of Order is not applicab!ér’for the year. '

: udit of Standalone financial

licable in respect ofa

ct of the said clause has been included in this report.

For SHAH-GUPTA & CO,,
Chartered Accountants

arth P Patel

Partner

M. N0.172670

UDIN: 22172670AKZURK3490

place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2022
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standalone financial

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on i
sta‘::mentst:edinmma' financial controls with reference to the aforesaid
nder Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act

bino Steel Limited

We ha di
ve audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Piom
ith our audit of the

b
it:r:‘"lafte" referred to as “the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 In conjunction W
ndalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls bas?d
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control steted in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contr'ols
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, includind

adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reltable

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility .
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting

with reference to these standalone financial statements of the Company pased on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section {10) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

applicable

procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controis over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standaione financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. The
proceduresselected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Our audit involves performing

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these

standalone financial staternents.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
standaione financlal statements ’
A Company's internal financial control over financial reperting with reference to these standalone financial
statements Is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial conitrol over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policles and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairl setthe transactions and
X ;\\
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-
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as necessary to' permit preparati (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions aré recorded
on of the standalone financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accountin
g princl
accordance with st ;:)es, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company aré being made onl¥ 7
e i sthos ns of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
ention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, of disposiion of (1€

Company's ass
ets tha
t could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

dispositions of the assets of the Compa
ny;

Inherent Limitati
theme oo mltatlogs of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference 0
ndalone financial statements - | |

S::Sa: zfazgat:::];";erent limitations of internal ﬁnancial controls over financial reporting with reference to
' nancial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. AlsO, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements to future year are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Finandial Controls Over Financial Reporting jssued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,:

arth P Patel
partner
M. No.172670 ]
UDIN: 23172670AKZURK3490
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2022
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PIOMBIND STEEL LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC374653
Amount in Rs. Crore

As at As at
Particulars Note No. March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
1 ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
{a) Investment in subsidiaries 2 100.00 100.00
{b) Financial assets :
{1} Investment * 3 8,450.00 8,450.00
(i) Other financial assets 4 0.27 0.27
{c}) Current tax assets (net} 5 26,83 0.08
Total non-current assets 8,577.10 . 8,550.34
{2) Current assets
{a) Financial assets
{i} Trade receivables 6 44536 - 10.17
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 7 4.23 59.66
(it} Other financial assets 8 464.13 8.30
{b} Other current assets 9 15,02 0.49
Total current-assets 928.74 78.62
Total Assets 9,505.84 8,628.96
il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity )
(a) Equity share capital 10 6,092.92 1,667.29
{b} Other equity 1 93.00 1,330.07
Total Equity " 6,185.92 2,997.35
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 2,525.22 5,231.18
{if) Other financial liabilities 13 . 230.63 4.01
{b) Deferred tax liabilities - 346.07
Total non-current liabilities 2,755.85 5,581.26
{2} Current liabilities
(a} Financial liabilities
{1} Trade payables N
{a) Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises 14 - .
(b) Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro and 4717 1069
small enterprises i .
(i} Other financial liabifities - 15 11646 38.80
{b) Other current liabilities 16 0.44 0.84
Total current liabilities 564.07 50.34
Total Liabilities 3,319.92 5,631.61
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,505.84 8,628.96

Al

financial stat

See accompanying notes to the st

As per our attached report of even date

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W %m \r\//’/’
N e A
o Kaustubh Kulkarni /,Dlv’yakumar Bhair
Chief Executive Officge” 7 Director Director
4 " DIN: 0856867% DIN: 02059903
rth P Patel ‘

Partner d) r}/
Membership No.: 172670 1 i Moni
UDIN: Alok KumaTfMishra Mohit Goyal

Place: Mumbai : Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 24, 2022 M. No, A15967




PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED

standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
CIN No. - U27320MH2018PLC§74653

Amount In Rs. Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise

Particulars . Note N For the year ended For the year ended
: ‘ ote No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
. Revenue from operations Y 560.36 8,30
i,  Otherincome . 18 507,00 8.30
n. Total income {1+11) 1,067.36 16.60
V. Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 19 559.55 8.27
Finance costs 20 434.98 13.20
Other expenses 21 1.97 0.20
Total expenses 996.50 21.67
V.  Profit/{loss) before tax (11-1V} 70.86 {5.07)
VI. Tax expense/(credit) 23
Current tax 26.39 -
Deferred tax : . (40.90) {1.79)
{14.52) {1.79}
Vii. Profit/{loss) for the year {v-vi) 85.38 (3.28)
Vill. Other comprehensive income/ {loss} . - -
IX. Total comprehensive in_come/(ioss) for the year {VI+Vill) . B5.38 {3.28)
X.  Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each
Basic - 021 (1.01)
. 22
Dituted ) . 0.08 {1.01)
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date .
r/ .
For Shah Gupta & Co. Forand on bgbai( ‘the Boardg of Directors
Chartered Accountants T
Firm Registration No.: 109574W g Yo" }
/\:\6\5 PTA &\\ M’\/ _ -
/ Q\? C‘O . Kaustubh Kulkarni jyyakumar Bhair * AmrKumar Singh
. [; & / MOMB A\ Chief Executive Officer " Director Director
. ool g« 4D e DIN: 08568679 DIN: 02059903
rth P Patel ﬁf UR 574w 2 )
Partrier 5 /,-? J?' }/
Membership Ne.: 172670 %M@ W m i
UDIN: ' R €D ACS Alok Kumar fflishra Mahit Goyal
place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 24, 2022 M. No. A15967




PIOMBING STEEL LIMITED
Standaione Statement of Cash Flows for the yeat entded March 31, 2022
CINNB. -« UZ7370MHZ01BPLLITA653

Amount in Rs. Crore
Particulars for the year ended  For the year ended
. Match 35, 2072 March 31, 2001
A, Cash Bow from operating activities
" profitf{Loss) betore tax TO.86 1567}
Adjustments for
Finante costs £34.98 1329
jaterest Income { 507‘00)' {4.30}
Loss from operating activities {1.16) {1.36)
Changes in working capital
Adjustrvents for
{increase] intrade ‘ﬂei\-éb\es {435.18) {1017}
Decreasef{increase) in other assels 13.60 {054}
Intrease in trade payables and other hiabilities 393.90 1002
Cash used in operations {28.64) (0.49)
- Direct taves paid {1.25} (0.8}
Net cash used in operating activities (A} {29.90) {0.97)
8. Cash flow from investing activities
investment in equity shares {0.31) {95.25}
tavestment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures {ccos) . (8.450.00}
Net cash used in investing activities {B} {0.31) {8,545.85]
C. Cash fiow from financing activities
Money received against share warrants - 14.00
Proceeds from issuance of Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures {OFCDs) - 5,120.00
Proceeds from non-current borrawings 56.00 2,500.00
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares including pending allotment . §72.20
Finance costs paid {37.50} {0.38)
Annual Fees paid (43.75}
Annual Fees recovered from Piombino - -
Share issue expenses paid - {0.05)
Net cash (used}/generated in financing activity {C) {25.25) 8,605.78
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A¥8+C) (55.45) 58.95
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balances 59,66 0.70
Cash and cash equivalents received on acguisition (refer note 30) 0.03 -
Cash and cash equivalents - closing batances 4.3 59.66

Note:

1. The statement of cash flows is prepared using the mindirect method” set out in ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.
1l. Non-cash investing transactions

During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has received 100,000,000 equity shares (Rs.
Debentures {Rs. 10 each} of Bhushan Power & Steel Limited {BPSL), against Company's equity an
{MPL}, pursuant to merger of MPL the then subsidiary of the Company with BPSL.

111, Reconciliations part of cash flows

10 each} and 8,450,000,000 Computsorily Convertible
d compulsorily convertible debentures holding in Makler Private Umited

[particulars Borrowings Equity Total Aj
[Balance as on March 31, 2021 5,231.18 1,667.29 6,898.47 |
Unwinding of interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost (2,768.55) - {2,768.55}
Unamortised upfront fees 6.59 . 6.59
Loan from parent 56.00 - 56.00
Shares issued pursuant to conversion of OFCDs - 2,797.55 2,797.55
Edassiﬁcation of equity component within equity - 1,628.08 1,628.08
[Batance 25 on March 31, 2022 2,525.22 5,092.92 | 8,618.13 |

See accompanying notes to the dal

financial t

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.! 108574W

o=

7 Kaustubh Kulkamnl

arth P Patel
Partner
Membership No.: 172670
UDING
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2022

s

Chief Executive Officers
/éj =

-
[ 5
For and wmt]he Board gtDirectors

flvvaaun'\nr Bhair
Director
DIN: 08568679

el

. Alok Kumar ra

Company Secretary
M. No, A15967

mat Singh
Director
DIN: 02059903

Mt

Mohit Goyal
Chief Financial Otficer
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ADMBINO STEEL LIMITED
jotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

General Information

piombino Steel Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in India on September 21, 2018 under the Companies
Act, 2013 with its registered office located at 6th Floor, ISW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra {East),
Mumbai 400051.

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling and gtherwise trading or dealing in steel and its allied
products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, ores, minerals and mineral substance, alloys and metal scrap of all
kinds.

Recent accounting pronouncements: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards /
amendments under Companies {Indian Accounting standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March,
2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, 3s below:

{a) Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. The effactive date for
adoption of this amendmient is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022.

(b} Ind AS 37 | Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to 3
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract {examples would be direct labour, materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts {an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022, although early
adoption is permitted. '

(c) Ind AS 103 | Business combinations — The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

(d) Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments ~ The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the
10%' test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity {the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on the other's behalf.

There are no impact of these amendments on the Company.
Significant accounting policies
statement of compliance:

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year ended 31st March, 2022, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”) have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) to the extent notified, guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India {SEBI) and other accounting principles generally accepted in india.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on May
24,2022. ‘

. Basis of preparation and presentation:

The Stanancial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
g\ RTRP ved at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accountipg-pa icies
th aré tently followed except where a new accounting standard or amendment




$tothe standalone Financial statements for 1

i ; ati nts of Division 1 of
t ange in the polic pitherto applied. presentation requirements
ol e iy e an : to the standalone ginancial Statements

’ L ad" licable
schedule (il to-the Companies Act, 2013, "as amended", as PP e e
nave been followed. The standalong Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR"} In crore 7 ounded

off totwo decimal places s permitted by schedule llit0 the Companies Act, 2013

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid t0 transfer @ liabili‘w itw a'rt orderh/btrans::)c’noonr
petween market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price 15 directly observabié

estimated using another valuation technique. in estimating the fair value of an asset or @ Hiability, the Comtnatxy
takes in account the characteristics of the asset of liabitity if market particapants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset of jiability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level t,'2, or 3 based
on the degree 10 which the inputs to the fair value measurements aré abservable and the significance of the

inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. level 1inputsaré quoted prices (unad]usted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

. level2inputsare inputs, other than quoted
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

.  level3inputsare unobservable inputs for the asset of liability.

prices included within jevel 1, that are observable for the asset

The Financial Statement is presented in INR except when otherwise stated.

Current and non-current dassification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

o itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

« itisexpectedtobe realized within 12 months after the reporting date; of _

o jtiscashor cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 2 liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

. itisexpectedtobe settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; -

o itisheld primarily for the purpose of being traded;

s itis dug to be' settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an
u?corl\dgi‘onal right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms
of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its ' i ‘

. , ) p settlement by the i
instruments do not affect its classification. ! ssue of eadlty

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and the

cash equivalents ir realisation in cash and

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are classified as non-current only.

ASABINO STEEL LIMITED |
he year ended March 31, 2022
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MBINO STEEL LIMITED

ﬁ%’tes to the Standalone Financial statements for

711, Revenue recognition

Sale of Goods

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
for those goods Of services.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such. @

incentives, of other similar items ina
revenue excludes any amount collected on

ses revenue generally at the point in

The Company recogni
it sale, wh?ch is W

when it is delivered to 3 carrier for expo

customer. in contracts

treated as @ separate performance obligation and revenue s’

|nterest income

Interest incomée froma financial asset is recognised when it is
Company and the amount of income can be measured relia

reference to the principal outstanding an
discounts astimated future cash receipts through the expe

carrying amount on initial recognition.

IV. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period
the cost of those assets,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement
incurred.

V. Taxes:

the year ended March 31, 2022

to which the Company expects 10

s discounts, rebates, refund

contract when they are highly pro
hehalf of third parties.

time when the products are deliv

where freight is arranged by the Compan

d at the effective interest rate app

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

ds or cervices 15 transferred to the

promised goo
pe entitled in exchange

5, credits, price concessions,
bable to be provided. The amount of

ered to customer or
over product is transferred o the
d from the customers, the same is
Wt services are rendered.

hen the control
y and recovere
ecognized when such freig

probable that the economic penefits will flaw to the
bly. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
licable, which is the rate that exactly

cted life of the financial asset to that ‘asset’s net

construction of production of qualifying assets, which are
of time to get ready for their intended use of sale, are added to

intended use or sale.

of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are

{ncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based ©
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding fax

n the taxable profit for the year as determined in
the Income Tax Act, 1961. '

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

:ﬁf:r;ed tt::‘( liabilities are racognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are reco nised f
o ; \:; 0‘5: dte;npdr;ary dlfferedces t'o the extent thatitis probable that taxable profits will be availabgle agai Oi
eductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities ari :st
o

recognised if the temparary difference arises from the initial

recognition (other thanin 2 business combination)

of asset e -
ssets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting fit. |
profit. In

additiorx, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the tem
of goodwill,

L
The carryifge:
extenlig‘fgsit‘ls nﬁoﬁ;g\e\z\:\probable that sufficient taxable pro

1051 S &
. .“y‘iz\

1AL

porary difference arises from the initial recognition

amopitaf deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and r h
e the

fits will be available to allow-all or




AOMBINO STEEL LIMITED :
. Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are-offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tex are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and iabilities on a net basis.

Vi

——

inventories
Inventories are ctated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and
fabor and 3 proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost of traded goods include purchase cost and inward freight.

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
V. Provisions

provisions are recognised when the Company has 3 present obligation {legal or constructive), as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required o settle
such an obligation.

The amount recognised as 2 provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or ail of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

VIt investment in subsidiary:

investment in subsidiary is shown at cost in accordance with option avallable in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial
statements’. Where the carrying amount of an investment in greater than its estimated recoverable amount, Itis
written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Plroﬂt
and Loss. On disposal of Investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
charged or credit d”(cj ;cbgise\ga"ge\ment of Profit and Loss.

IX. Financial instrgmentse N2 A

R T B
Y S
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JIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED ’ @
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 '

b

financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an pntity becomes 2 party to the cantractual

provisions of the instrument.

financial assets and financlal labilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of {inancial assets and financial llabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss. (FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets of financial liabilities, as appropriate, o0 initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets of financial liabllities at fair value through profit and loss

are recognised immediately in gtandalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

financial assets

a) Recognition and initial measurement

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition of issue. purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date,
which is the date on which the Company hecomes a party t0 the contractual provisions of the instrument.

b} Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (oct), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial asset is measured
at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within 8 business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal arnount outstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOC! only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised at
FVTPL,

o The asset is held withina pusiness mode!l whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and seliing financial assets; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates t0 cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Al equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which ind AS 103
applies are clagsified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In ad.dition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost of at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, ‘with any gains and losses
ognized in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognized in statement of
o dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included her

Nancial assets at FVTPLIS recognized when:
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»  The Company's rightto receive the dividends is established;
o itisprobable thatthe economic benefits assoclated with the dividends will flow 1o thi entity,
e The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the. investment and the smount of dividend

can be measured reliably.

¢} Derecognition of financial assets

ual rights to the cash flows from the asset gxpire, of

The Company dergcognises 3 {inancial asset when the contract
asset to another

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards p! ownership of the

party.

d} Effective interest method

d is a method of ealculating the amortised cost of 3 debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums OF discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, ar, where appropriate, 3 shorter year, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The effective interest metho

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
Classified as at FVTPL. interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss and is included in the ‘Other

income’ line item.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments’

g} Classification as debt or equity

Oebt and equity instruments issued by @ company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain of
loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's
own equity instruments. :

¢} Financial liabilities
Financi;l fiabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL or ‘gther financial liabilities'. at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Fin:\r;:ial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financlal liability is either held for trading or it is-designated as
at FVTPL. c |

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

« |t has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of {dentified financl ‘

al instruments that the Compan
and has a recent aguatpattern of short-term profit taking; or pan manges togecher
ma?fgg}g\bg&signated and effective as a hedging instrument,
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gga*s to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

A financial liability other than a financlal labllity held for trading may be designated as at EyTPL upon initial
 recognition if: '

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inc
otherwise arise;

» the financial lability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities
its performance is evaluated on 3 falr value basls, in accordance with the Company’s
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or '

« it forms part of a contract contalning one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire

combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

onsistency that would

of both, which is managed and
documented risk management

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For Liabilities designated

as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses stiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in ocl.

inancial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,

The Company derecognises f
f the financial liability derecognised and the

cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount o
consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Derecognition of financial Habilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is accounted for as.an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability {whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit

- and Loss.

X. Segment reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating
Decision r;/!aker which reviews and assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic decisions.

X1, Cash and cash equivalents:

Ca‘sr.x and cash'equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Zc)r th‘e purpdosfe o; the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and short-term
eposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as th i i

: . ey are considered
Company's cash management. ! e on integral part of the

Xli. Earnings per share:

g
equ’t! Shales OUtSta“d ”g du' “g the yeal' lhe WelghtEd aver age l UI“bel OI equlty Shales OUtSta“di”g du””g

the year is adjusted for treasury share i
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share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares), ghts lse to exlsting shareholders

Diluted earnings per share is com ividi i
puted by dividing the profit / {loss) aft j
e e s o o ' after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest
shares, by the yg’ﬁ{iéﬁffé‘mge numb:r(cr:fe z;:ni:; zha::;I: gz:gliz YBX: Sf) rec‘iatmg e e e e
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féﬁbtes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

£ potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share
options by the employees.

Xlil, Business Combination

Business combinations invalving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the

pooling of interest method.

XIV. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements:

under section 1 above, the Company is required to make
ing amount of assets and liabliities that are not readily
d assumptions are hased on historical experience and
ts may differ from these estimates,

in the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carry
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associate
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resul

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
d if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of

are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revise
the revision and future year, if the revision affects current and future year.

XV. Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of
investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have anticipated the discount rates and other factors of
the underlying businesses / operations of the investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due
to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of investments.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized. The
cases which have been determined as remote by the Company are not disclosed.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements unless when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. :

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the standalone financial
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable pl;ofit will be

available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferre'd tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable

x planning strategies.
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sig part of the dalons finandal stat re
= nmount ta R, (1019
Ay ot March 31,2027 As t Marth 33,2001
No. of shares Amount o, of thares ARt
:wmmem atoost
{a) tavestment in equity instruments
shyshan Power & Stee! Umited [Face value of Rs, 10 eath] 100,000,000 100.00 100,000,000 100,00
TotalInvestment 166,000,000 100,00 150,000,000 30000
3. Investments {non-cutrent} Ar;‘ ou % n ks, C1OI_
= st March 31, 2022 As #t March 31,20
partoe No.of s::m e Amount Mg, of shares Amount
Tnvestment in computsary convertible debentures
Unquoted {at falr vatue through profit & loss)
subsidiary .
shashan Power & Steel Limited {Face value of Rs 10 each) 8,450,000,000 8,450.00 8,450,000,000 8A50.00
Totat #,450,000,000 8,450.00 4.450,000,000 3,450.00
unguoted
Aggregate carrying value #,350,000,000 8,450.00 8,450,000,000 3,450.00
CDs holders are entitied to recelve 3 coupon on #n

The CCOs shall have a term of § {five] years mmmencing from
annvusl basis at the rate of 6X per gnnum from the date of issu

the date on which the CCDs
¢ and atiotment of €CDs, T

which the interest became due. Each CCD is convertible at any time during the CCD term in

are Issued and allotted Le. March 25, 2021, The C
he CCDs coupon shall be payable on en
to one equity shares of face value of Ais. 10,

d of quertet from commencement of each subsequent quarterin

Amount In R, Crore

& Other non-current finandat assets
As at Asat
Particlars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
- - . 0.27
Security depasit : ;; o7

5. Cument Tax Assels {Net}

Amount in Rs. Crore
As ot Asat

Particutars

March 31,2022 March 33, 2023
26.83 0.0

Tav Deducted at Squrce {net of pro

Vision Tor tax amaunting to Rs. 26.39 crore, [31 March 2021- nil})

26.83 .08

Amount in Ry. Crare

As at Asat

6. Trade recelvables
Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
449.36 10.17

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
43536 10.17
. [V dine for following periods from due date of payment asat 31 March 2022
Particulars Less than 6 & months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3years Total
months
Undi d trade receivables - considered good 445.36 - - 44536
Undt 4 trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - .
Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - . B
Disputed trade recaivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - . . .
Disputed trade receivables - creditimpaired - . N B
particulars o than; ding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31 March 2021
months 6 months -1year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Undi d wade receivables - considered good 1017 - B N 10.37

Undisguted trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade ceceivables - credit Impaired

Disputed trade recelvables - considered goad

Disputed trade recehvables - which have significant increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 7 ta 90 days with or without securlfy. Trade recelvables does not inelude any receivables from directors-and officers of the Company.

Trade receivables from related parties’ details has been described in note 24.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Amount In Rs. Crore

As at As at

Particulars
Balances with bank March 33,2022 March 31,2021
in current 30COUNts
4.23 59.66
. i 4.23 59,66
8. Other current finsnclal assets
Am
Particulars o w"tg ::‘ Croce
Interest receivable on CCDs March31,2022  March31,2021
Other financial assets 463.87 .30
0.26 .
484,13 8.30

9, Others cutrent assets

Amount in Ks. Crore

Particul

iculars As #t As ot

Advance given March 31,2022 . March 31,2021

83lance with government sutorities . i 0.39
15.60 0.10

Others

0.02 i —
15.0 f
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prmiptin By Croee

i Avat Mdrih 31, 1671 TR a Mhaeck 1, F8TL
S wihorird: Ho Blsbaes i e SR
ity shares of Ky 10 vath
w 13000, 000,000 L1000 (4 L ILAN L yiEn
) tsued and subrribed
Detstanding 8t the beginning of the year, fully pald up .
saa ey isyoed duting the yeur Yor gash 2,006,006, 080 164773 ’1;}{;3;:;: .,r—,)\ i’;
add Shaess liued pUrroRnt 10 eonversion ol OFCMY N - iy ;
44 ? 51
Add Bestayvification of equsty compinont withis squity moo,ocm?m ;Zi :; imﬁ"m@ e
Quistanding #t the end of the yesr, fully paid vp _E10000,00 X)) TIEOTALED D,

] Righty, preterences snd restrictiont sttached Yo rquity shares
The Combant Joas vingle class of wuity shares, Each holder of equity shares iy entitiod Tor one vote per share held in the eveal o Segation, ha eruity thacehaidar yrw sigible 16 19t e
romaining sxets of the Cormpiny siter Gistibution of afl prefecential ¥mount, in gropartion 1o theit sharsholding

(4] Detaits of shareholders holding more than 3% shares In the Company ate sef oul below:

Panticutars. As #t March 34, 2022 Af 0t Maeh 31, 201
No, of Shaees % ol Shates Fo, of Shates % of arey
TS Steel Limnited {JSW Steel] including nomirees) 5,086,000,000 B1.25% [y . s
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 1,020,000,000 16 7% 1 LUMBOLEG Lo
in Promoter's tharehalding as on 31 March 2022:
% change during the
. yuar Computed daus
. . the narmbber of onuity
Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares rares ot The
begianing snd 5t the
nd of the yuar
[1SW steet ried, the Holding Compsny ] § 080,000,000 21.28% A1507S
{7SW Stiping & Logistics Private Umited . 1,020,000,000 16.T7% C4%

{1) Shares issued purmiant to conversion of optionally fully convertible debentures {OFCDs) fssued to JSW Shipping

The Company issued 6%, 1,020,000,000 {tace value of Rs. 10 each} optionaily fully convertible debentures 10 JSW Shipping & Loglstics Private Uimited {I5W Shipping) with # terms of ten yewrs. Each
KT was optionally convertible into one equity shares of the Company having fsce valie of Rs, 10 each before the expiry of the term and at the sols option of the OFCD holders. J3W Shigering was
invoked the conversion optioh on March 27, 2021 snd converted the OCFDs held by them into equity shares of the Company. Accordingly, the Company tsued 1,020,000,008 egusty shares fiaem
value of Rs. 10 esch) pursusnt 1o conversion of optionally fully convertible debentures.

{g) Shares issued pursuant ta conversion of optioaally fully convertible debentures {OFCDs) lssued to JSW Steel S
pursuant 1o the subscription and sharsholder's agreement between the Company, JSW Steel and JSW Shipping, JSW Steel had subscribed to certain OFCDs of the Company. As per O terms of

OFCDs, indluding revisions thereto, J5W Steel has the optlon to convert the OFCDs into equity shares at any Ume 81 the option of JSW Steel. Accordingly, JSW Steel has exercised U option of
converson of 4,100,000,000 OFCDs held by JSW Steel in the Company into 4,300,000,000 equity shares of the Company of face value of Ry. 10 sach on October 1, 2021, Puritant to the
corversion, ISW Steel holds §3.28% equity in the Company and ISW Shipping holds 16.72% equity in the Company. Subsequent to the aforesaid conversion, the Company has now besome 3

subsidiary of J5W Steel.
11, Other ewky Amount in . Creore
. Asat Asat
March 33, 2022 Masch 31, 207

Surplas] (Geficit) in retained earnings 7858 {6.34%
Equity DO of compound financial - 1,32253%
Capitsl reserve . . 0.47 -
Muorey received against shace warrants * 14.00 10

w0 wweo),
{8} Retained earnings

Retained earnings sre the profits/{losses) that the Company has earned till date. It s 2 free reserve avallable to the Company.

{b} Equity component of comp: d finandal ts Issved

The Company has issued optionally fully convertible debentures (OFCDs) to JSW Steel and 1SW Shipping on March 74, 2021. The Company has computed the tiability portion of OFCDs as the
present wilue of the contractus! obligations with the instrument and the difference between the isyue amount of OFCDs énd the liability so computed hay been treated a3 ‘equity component of
optionslly fully conventible debentures' and grouped under other equity, The OFCDs issued to JSW Shipping and JSW Steel have been converted into equity shares of the Company with effect trom
March 27, 2021 and October 1, 7028 respectively. The equity component of optionally fully convertible debentures s reclassitied within equity and grouped under equity share capital upont
conversion of both OFCDs issued to ISW Steel snd JSW Shipping.

-{o Capital reserve
Reserye iy created primarily on merger {refer note 30} 53 per stetutory requirement. This reserve Is utllised In accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013

{8) Money received sgainst share warrants

The Company has sued 3,500,000,000 shate warranty each to JSW Steet and JSW Shipping respectively with & subscription prige of Rs. 0.0 per warrant. The exercise petiod is five years trom the
Suys of issut of the warrants and the warrant holders 9t their discretlon shall be entitied to purchase one equity share of the fscs value of Rs. 10 each 2t an exercise price of Ry 10

12, Bosrowings
Assount la Rs. Crore
Particulars Asat reen
— — oy 3 March 31, 2022 Masch 33, 2021
{i) Debentures :
Optionally fully ble geb {iabinty comp 1
Borrowings through NCB: - 2,768.8%
Less Unamorntised uptiom fees on boftowings 2.500.00 .
{ii) Term Loang {30.28} (37.38)
froem rolated party
3650 2,500.00
{a} Uabllity cxmp of compound 1 bis ; 2 535.22 5.291.18

oW Stesl 6?& OFCDs having fate value of Rs. 10 apgregating 10 Rs, 63,000,000,000 are convertible by 15W Siwel sher the end of § years ffom the dete of issue or in the event of 3 mer f the
Company with any olher entity, whichever I¢ earlier ot the sole option of JSW Sieel. £ wch OFCD shall be converted inta pne squity shete of th Company AL the end of the term, in n:‘J;:\IoS! 7
X 5 o

has not exercised the option of conver; ieve not been converted ind ]
fo equity shares of the Company, 1 « $ ;i
torest thes o shall be unsecired ] s Company, lie OFCDs shall be redeemed 31 pat, The JISW Steel OFCOS and any sexrued

tevisian in tonversion condinns T Thod

conversion of 4,100,000,000 O equw;;é«&\ﬁm\g:’i

shate zapital.
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{chtoan from 15W Steel
The Company has borrowed ftam JSW Steel amounting to s, 40,000,000 bear

ansecured obligations of the Company, and rank pari passu with zny other uns

ing an interest rate of 10.75% and Is repaysble on March 31, 2024, The principal and accrued

scured and unsubordinated creditors of the Company.

te of 11.25% and is repayable on March 31, 2024. The principal and accru

1o Rs. 520,000,000 bearing an interest ra
ubordinated creditars of the Company-

The Company has botrowed (rom JSW Steel amounting
| passu with any other unsecured and uns

be unsecured obligations of the Company, and rank parl

oy hs ot Tarm of repayment
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
"°"'C°mcmbm Bonds (NCB| 2,500 2,500 | 9% uhsecurad NCBs of Re. 10,00,000 u;h valug Rs. 2,500 Crores
ate redeemable on March 22, 2024

interast thereon vhall be

ad interest thefeofi shait

Amount in Ry, Crore
Asat

13. Other non-current financlal Habilitles Aot
particulars March 31,2022 parch 31, 2021
. 230.63 4.0
Tnterest accrued but not due on-borrowings 330.63 4.01
Amount In Rs. Crore

W

14, Trade payabl
particutars March 34, 2022 March 31, zozf
1a) Total outstanding, dues of micro and smalt enterprises
{) Total autstanding, dues of treditors other than micro 3nd small enterprises 447.17 10.6%
~Others 447.37 10.69
e ik as on March 31, 20220 '_—’_——”____/'d_—’—
Trade payables ageing 259 o Aime for following periods from due date of payment
R
Particulars Unbllied Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
N - R R
0% g2l P 4747
i . - - _d_____.i_______—L—
Disputed dues - Others. ________.___._-________._-.—-_._,____—-———~
Trade payables ageing as on March 31,2021 5 T Tollowing periods From dve date of payment
Tradg payables sgeing 35 98 22 == g pay! et
Particulars Unibliled Less than 1 year 1-2 years __‘_gﬂe_ar_s__,__a__»}_o[_ﬂ_______
MSME - - - - -
. - 10.6%
Others 0.15 10.84 - - -
Disputed dues - MSME - - -
Disputed dues - Others - . K
Payables are normally settled within 180 days.
15. Other current finandal liabllitles Amount In Rs. Crore
N Asat Asat
Particulars Marth 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Interest acctued and due on borrowings 116.46 0.47
Proviston for expanses - 0.84
provision for upfront {ees I 37.50
116.46 38.80
16. Other current Habilities Amount in Rs.-Crore
Particulars Asat CAsat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory dues 0.44 0.84
0.44 0.84
17, Revenue from operations Amount In Rs. Crore
oarticulars For the yeat ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Sale of traded goods i 560.36 830
Trading of cost )
Trading of steel products
560.36 8.30
lpd AS 115 {! from with 3)
The Company has assessed and determined the foliowing categories for disaggregation of revenue in addition to that provided under segment disclosure
. ; Amount In Rs. Crofe
Particutars Forthe yearended  For the year ended
Revenue from contracts with customer - sale of products March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Trading of coat
Trading of stee! producty N 8.30
Total savenue from cperstions 56036 by
india 36036 8.30
Outside India 560,36 8.30
Total revenue from operations h -
Timing of revenua recognition $60.36 8,30
At p point in time
Total revenue from operations $60.36 830
$60.36
iy 8.30
Contract balances A & W, -
Particulars /7//\2\ - C‘\ Amount in Rs. Crore
Trade receivables H ':%‘ \\,:7 N M Aot As 3t
P AEITT I ST

\ ]
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it (MR
2ot )
F i parted the financisl 3
: . jwceme Aot n By, CI08
&w”" v For the year anded  For the yext #nded
b atth 34,2001 M3tch 21
J';;‘aned on fimnancisl assets o e T o5
it 07,09 A
13 purchase of stockIn-trade Amouny 15 A G108
- tor the yeat ended  For tha year snded
ot  mguon Mk
- E B 877
e of waded goods I = A
* 559,55 577
Aot 1 RS Lo
. Finante costs e g
| 0. fot For the yeat ended  FoX the yeat ended
: Farticulars ) saatch 31,2022 sprth ik Zﬂ’ilﬂ
Interest on BOMTWINGS 2 7; :; 7 5’7
Unwinding of interest on financis! abilities cartied 3t amortised coxt - “6~59 051
Other bormowing costs M__..-—————-*’"’"‘"
¢ 434.58 1329
Amount in B3 Crore
Fof the year ended
2021
0.57 0.14
Legal and professionst fees __________1_'19—.-—'—-———‘226‘
Miscellanecus expenses 1.97 __ 920,
o to auditors included In lege! and professional Fees 0.2 001
As Statutory audit fees {including Timited reviews} 0.04 R

For certification and other services

Net profit/{ioss) attributable 1o equity sharenolders for the year {A)

Weighted average numiber of equity shares for the purpose of calculating Basic 4,046,383,562 32551512

earnings per share 18} .

Welghted average numbe/ of equity shares for the purpase of calculating diluted 11,044,383,562 32,551.512

earnings per-share {C}

£amings per share . 0.2 {101}
Basic [Face value of Rs. 10 each} {#/8) 0.08 {1.01}

Diluted {Face value of Rs. 10 each} (MG}

23. income Tax
A recancitiation of income tay expense applicable to arcounting profit before tax at the statutory Income tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

H
For the year ended  For the year ended
particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Effective taxrate reconciliation ]
profit before tax 70.86 {3.07}
Enected tax rate in Indid 25.17% 26.00%
Expected Income tax expense at statutory tax rate 17.84 {1.32}
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits
Deferred tax assets not recognized 8.5% 1.32
Reversal of DTL created o equity component of OFCDs . .
Tax expense/ {eredit) fos the year 26.39 .
effective income tax r3te 37.24% ox
Deferred tax llabilities
Tend] Teod]
Asat ! M Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2021 reversed through veversed through March 31, 2022
W
Equity component of optionaily fully convertible debentures 346.07 40.50} {305.17} .
Totsd 346.07 {40.90) {305.17) N

74, Related party disclosures 25 required by Ind AS 24
A Relationships
1. Holding Company .
JSW Stee) timited (wpto March 26, 2021, subsequently with effect {rom October 1, 2021}

2, The investing party in respect of which the reporting enterprise It & joint venture
T5W Steel Limited {with effect (rom March 27, 2021, upto September 30, 2021}
1SW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (with effect from March 27, 2021, upto September 3¢, 2021}

3. Subsidlary Company
Makler Private Limited fupto March 26, 2021}
Bushan Power & Steel Limited {witls effect from March 26, 2021)
West Waves Mantime & Aflied Services Private Limited (with effect from November 24, 2021)

&, Fellow Subsidiary Company
1SW/ Steel Coated Producty Limited
Asian Color Coated ispat Umited
J5W vallabh Tinplate Private Limited

5. Key Management Personnel
M. Kaustubh Kulkarni {with eftect from fanusi¥ 38012,

Mr. Mohlt Goyal {with effect from lnnunj}d& 21 A
3 A
Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra L ;PE—v{L&

Chief Executive Officer
Chiel Financial Officer
Company Secretaty

I

§ st




f oS>

1L UNITED
2 part of the standalone financhal statements

of Dlrecton

, - Biikan Prased {upto December 1321}

§ar. Sundeep fain (upto December 1,2001)
\WF Erivem & SN, {uplo December 1,202)
i) Kumsr Mohta (with #Hect from Decembier 1,201}
£ Ani Kumar Singh (with eftect Trom Detember 1,2021}
Divakuraer Bl fwith efhect from December 1,2021)
Ahuipy Kymar {with eifec! from December 1,2021)
2 (AR RakhiJvin (with elfect from December 3.2021)

Non-independent Hon recytive (inictor
Hofidridependent Hon-{ recutive Director
Hon-independent Hon-Uxkcuties Dracior
Non Independsnt Hon-Lracutive (Rrector
Hon-independent Hon-Evacutive Director
Non-ndependent Non-Lastutive Direcior
Indeperident Non-Liacutive (irectat

Ingependent Hon{secutive Direglor

2. Othat related paity
WSt Waves Matitime & Allied Services Private Limited {upte November 23, 2071}
15W Shipping & Logities Private Limited {with effect from October 0}, Y021}

& Transactions with related pacties : Asvicont i B8, (roed
For the year snded  For the yuiv doded
" Myrch 31, 1012 March 31, 2021
Maer Private Umited [subsequently merged with Bhushan Power & Steel Limited) . .
ivestment In equity shires . %85
Investment in corpulsory convertible debentures 4050
ghushan Power & Steet Umited .
Investrneat in equity shares . B woo
t in compulsory convertible deb . 3ALD
intermt intome - bk 8§30
ISW Stee! Limdted
Loan received i s6.0 -
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - F1L.3
Proceeds from issue of optionaly fully convertible debentures - 435000
Proceeds from tssue of warrants - - 146
Fingnce Costs 157 65 £33
Purchase of steed products £63.65 -
ISW Steel Costed Products Limited
Trading of steel products . 341,64
Asian Color Coated ispat Umited
Traging of steel products €3.06 -
15W Vallsbh Tinplated Private timited
Trading of steel products 10, -
West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private United
Advance given . 0.0% 039
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf : 081 3304
Loan rectived ’ ’ 250000
Finance costs 18112 18
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Umited
Proceedt from issue of optionally fully convertble deberntures {refer note 3} . - 1.020.00
Proceeds from issue of warrants - 180
Fingnce costs - 054
Director Reenuneration
& ion 10 Kaustabh Rufkarni® 0.00
* rmaount being INR 197
€. Balances with related parties Amount in Rs. Trove
As at As R
Partictans March 31,2072 Maech 31,2021
Bhushan Power & Steel Limited .
interest receivable 515.30 830
ISW Steed Umited
Liability component of OFCDs (refer note 1) . - 2,768.55
osn outstanding 56,00 N
interest payable 115.30 -
Trede payables 44585 .
West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited
Advance outsanding N .99
Loan paysbie® . 2,500.00 -
interest peyable . 485
Other payables . 33.04
15W. Steel Coated Products Uimlted
Trade receivables 34075 .
Asian Color Coated Ispat Umited ~
Trade receivabies ' 1151 A
15W Vattabh Vinplated Private Limited
Trage receivables 1503
J5W Shipping & Logisties Private Umited
interest peyable 047 . 047

"The Company duning the previous year ended March 31, 2021 has provided & corporate guarantee for an dggiegale smount of As. 2500 ctores on behall of West Waves to the Dedentute
Trustees for the Ron Convertible Debentures Jssued by West Waves 1o the fenders.

25, Finandal instruments
5.3 Capital Risk Management

The Company maintains & stiong credif rating thiough optimum mix of debt and squity. The principsl source of funding of the Company is from inter cotporate km.n capital markets and investon.
The Company is not suliject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company regularly considers othet fingnrcing snd refinancing opportunities to divensify ity debt prolite, rvduc;
fntesest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio. The Corapany monitors its capital wing gearing ratio, which is net debt, divided to total equity. Net debt include, in(e(w(‘b{%ﬂﬂg

tosns and bortowings less cash snd cash squivalents, bank batences other than cash aud cash eq ival anf cairent

Amount in Rs, (rore
Particulars Asat Asat
Tonhg-1erm bortowings Masch 31, 2032 Mirch 31, 2021
vess Cash and cack equivalent - ' ys5as.u 3,33018
Het detn {3.23) {39.66}
Total equity 1,520.89 517152
Gearing ratio 6,185.92 299236

043

Equity includes all capital and res naged as capitat and debt s defined o3 long and shortterm bo”oan
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cories of financlal invttuments

~unting cassification of each categaty of

part of tho standal financisl statemanty

financial instruments and thel carrying amounts ate et oul belowi
Arniint In 2y, Lioce

be the seme as thelr falr vatues, due to their short-term nature. A significant part of the financial assets s classified as Level 2,

Maich 31, 7072
Amoritsed cost falr valua through Total cacrying vilue Total tair vatua
pepfitandloss....
? . B,A30.00 BASOLG EASGH0
" rade recaluables 445,36 - 44536 44535
Cash and Eathequivaients 4.23 g 4 421
Othet finsncial asiets 464,40 . AEAAC 448 Al
Yotal 913.99 8450.00 9,363.99 935199
Tinancial labilities
Long term borrowings 252522 - YETARE 154447
Trade payabley 44751 . 447.57 447 ;7
Other financial liabilities 341.09 < 4703 34759
Totat 3,315.48 . 331948 732864
As at March 31, 2021 Amaount 5 RS Crore
) fue through
Particulars amortised cost TR VIO SMOUA ) canrving valus  Total flr vakoe
profit and logt
Finandial assets
investiments . B,A50.00 BAWLG 845050
Trade receivables 10.47 16.47 .17
Cash and cash equivalents 549,66 Y186 55
Other financtal assets 8.57 - 8.5 ‘857
Totat 78,39 3,450.00 $,518.39 £,528.33
Financial Habiities
Long term borrowings 5,231.18 - 5,733.38 5.231.18
Trade payables 10.69 1063 1045
Other financia! Habilities 42.82 42.82 4247
Yotal 5,284.69 . 5,284.69 5,288.69
26. Falr valug hierarchy of financial instruments
Yhe carrying amounts of trade receivables, trode paysbies, cash ang cash equl ts, other fi 12 assets and other financlal liabilities {other than those specificaliy discioied} are considered Lo

Tho falr value of thesa assets it marked {0 a0 dctive maciet o7 tased

on obtervable market data. The financtal assets carried at (it value by the Company bre mainly investments in debt securities, sceordingly, sny { volatility i3-not expretsd
Amonat o 1. Crore
As ot Asat
Level and valuation techniques
Pantlcsfary N March 31,2072 March 31, 7021
Level 2, Inputs othar than quoted pixes ingiuded
. B within fevel § that are obrerveble lor ssiet or Rabdty. 8.450 &
Non-current investments in unquoted CCOs measured at FVTPL enther doetiy i b pricesfor inditeetly [decived ,450.00 545000
{rom grices)
Yotal $,450.00 £,450.00
Dotalls of financlal assets/liabllities measured at amortised cost but falr value disclosed in category-wise Amount in Ry Crove
: ) ’ Asat Asat
particulars tevel and valustion techniques
N March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Long term borrowlngs Tevel 2, evtimaded by dissounting wxpecied future
cash flows using & dcount Tele equivelent 10 the vk
. Catrying value free tste of return adfusted for credit spread 253522 3,291.18
comsidéred by lenders for imtruments of senilsr
Fair value maturitien 1,534.42 5.768.55

26,1 Market risk management

Matket risk is the tisk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash fiows thet may result from & chaigs in the price of ¥ financial instrument. The vatue of & financial
instrument may change a4 & result of changes In interest rotes, price Tluctustions, liquidity and other matket changes. Future specitic market movements sannot be notmally predicted with

reasonable sccuracy.
26.2 Interest risk management

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the falr value o

¢ Tulyrs cash flows of 8 financial instrumant will fluctuste bocause of changes in matket interest rates, The Company b not exposed to interest rate

risk because funds are botrowed at fixed interest tates. The borrowings of th Company are principally denominated in rupees with fixed rates of interest.

6.3 Uguidity risk managemoent

Liguidity risk n:f'rn 1o the tisk of finencial distress or extraordinery high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid hinds In 8 situstion where b j yneapectedly detesionate and
requiring finaneing.

As 3t Mharch 31, 2022 Amount In Rs, €
Particulars 2 rore

<3 »

Financial ssets youu 1-5 yesrs 25 yeais Total
Inyestments

Trade recoivables 44536 843000 ; 4.450.00
Cash #nd cash equivalents 4‘23 ) : ws.38
Qther tingncial assels dM. 13 0'25 y 423
Yotas d - 0.02 464.30
Financial abilities 13 35025 881 9,363,499
Long tenm bartowings N

Trade poyebles adT17 L8311 . 5
Other Hnencisl liabilfities llé.dﬁ p 0. ) 4217
Total 5 30.61 « 347.

§61.63 2,155.85 . 3919 32

As 3t Mauch 33,2023

particulars Amouiit b Ry, Crore
Financial assets <1yodr 13 years >3 ygary Total
Investmenty

Tiade taceivebles . #.450.00 N

8,450.

Cash arid cash equivalents 10.47 ‘ N ‘:g ?7)
Other financisl assets $9.60 * b SS)AM
Total 30 : 0.27

P (LN - Ll

insnciat Habliitioy 3,430.00 77 [XYTET)
;nl\g tetm !:momngl *

Tatie payables ‘ 246262 2,768.% N
Other lgmncul frabsilittes 10.69 N ' . ? R
Total 880 40} . e

43,50 2,366.61 2,7585%




L1 UIMITED
L partoithe

. A tisk management ) ) , ]
S refers 1o the 1k that » counterpisty Wil default pn s contractual obligations resuiting in Financis] s o the Compyry. Currently, tha Compary ks singla Lustooer tidss The (ompary

Lipurtarers stter due Gigence based oo creditwortinexs ay ¥ rmeans of mitigating the rist of fingnciat loss from detiults

- Compdny i subject to fuctuations in peites ot the putchase of coal. The Compsny purchas

3L

f primarily all of ity coal requirements at pravailing rearkaf tatey duriig the gt arddad Hharch 35,

e in India and regularty reviewed by the Chief Operating Decivion Mskes Tor assasymant of Lompry's

s b biusiness of cotl and stael products trading #ctivity, primarily operal
5 of ity single reportable egment bay bann discioied 27 betow

e g T The relating to revenue from esterndl custormels and location of non-current sssets
Amicont s By, Cro0e
Tor the year snded  For the year snded
Partiodins Warch 31,2002 March 31,2021
Tommestic 56035 [
360536 £30
b. Noo-aurrent assety
Al neacutrent assets of the Company are focated in indis.
€. Cstomer contributing more than 10% of revenue Amount s 3. Lrore
Fov the year ended  Fovthe yeur ended
March 31, 2022 March 33, 2028
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited 2858 =
1SV Valiabh Tinplated Private Umited 6194 -
Api Apciio Tubes Lirnited 5640 -
Elamtin Mercantile Private Limited - 335
506.92 3.3

28 Contingent Lisbitives
The Company does not have sny contingent Tabifities as on March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 : NiL),

29, Viest Waves Mantime & Allied Services Private Uimited became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from November 24, 2021, upon acquesiton of 13 entinn sousty
sharehoiding from Magnificient Merchandise and Advisory Servicas Private Limited for 3 premium of Rs. 9.17 per shere. The Company had earlier availed financial assstance from Viest Vv
Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited amounting 19'Rs. 2500 crores in relation to the acquisition of the Bhushan Power and Steel Limited.

30. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on the fanuary 19, 2022 considered and approved the Schame of Amilgamation pursuant 1o Section 233 and other apphicable
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, providing for the merger of its wholly owned subsidiary West Waves with the Company. The Regional Director of Ministry of Corporute Affairs, Western
Region vide order dated May 6, 2022 approved the scheme of smalgamation of West Waves with the Company. Pursuant to receiving all the y regulatory and other approvals, West Waves
merged with the Company with effect from December 1, 2021. Accardingly, the Company had accounted for the merger under the pooling of interest method a3 prescribed in Ind AS 103 -
Business Combination of entity under common cantrol.

Below are the detsils of the book value of assets and lisbilities taken over as on November 30, 2021 and computation of capital reserve arising on merges:

Particulars Amount in Rs. Crore
Assets

Loans 2500.00
Other financial assets 155,55
Trade receivables ool
Cash and cash equivalents 03
Other current assets 0
Total (A} 2686.52
Uabilities

Borrowings 2500.00
Cther financial iabilities 15538
Trade payable 001
Other financial Habilities .01
Other current fabilities 3038
Tetal (8} - : 168875
Total idqniﬁable net assets acquired 3t book value (C) = [A-B) a8
investments () ) o:_“
Capital reserve arising on merger (C-D) a7

31. Previous year's figures have been rectassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm with the current ¢l comply with requiremants of o
12 f , A pericd classification in co ith il
e y : . " : if e 15 of the amended Schedule 1t the




FReHi 3 LIMITED
" ing part of the vandatone inantial
Ratios 5 Chassge s ratio 1 extesyof
ursetator Denominator FY 2123 -l Change % Chirge - 129% tompired Lo precrdiog
; $45
b Cutrent Ratio i beoes) Cutrent Askets | Current Liabilities B2 1% (1] §AG%
o - . Yol P
2 el Tguty Ratio fin time) ot ) Totst Caany o4 - i g Lahiiny recirsifind tn
Boasowing s oty on evwroise of TECE s
Profit before
Tax,
. Exceptional 1 gy
3 ()Qh\ Ko € Net Finance ASEr B Wy preidy e
Sorvie Conerape Tatic (I8 mes) Items, Chatges 116 0627 0.5 B8 BN peramsed of inconiss e penstit
Diepreciabion, Sarfore (20
Het finance
Charges
Average 1re s p gy
P e s Wit gl on
) st on Bquity (%) Profit after tax [Shateholder's 1.86% 0.27% roms 048 S IR | axzzmart of wrvase i profd
" CQuity er ey
$ {bwerniory Turmover® NA HA HA NA HA HA =
Chsa ot o8 fhangy in
& iDebtors Tomove: {in times) Gross sales | YCrRE Trade 246 163 023 90 pax ] reIne dn et & e
receivables than ingresse b t1ade
egekhiey
sasiura of ChargE T
¥ Trade payables turmover (i times] Purchasesof | Average trade 244 146 ass 6739% ineredse v paTchaces 4
stock-in-trade Ipayables i ) mmoee thas vereass o trads
payabies,
. . ! . INCHERS Wiy (RimaTiy on
et zapital turnover {in times) Net Sales Wortking Capits} 154 0.29 14 A21.35% Laczoant of crese
eyt S moaratices
Wigher prots maegin
e |Net Profit Margin (%] Net profit for Yotal income $.00% 1975% TR _130.50% atinbatable 1o wecrease o
the year profit after tax and ncresn
in il agme
Frofit before
Tax,
Exceptional INCre Xse Wah PY'M\ By der
10 IReturn on capaat empioved (%) Rems, Capitat employed 5.81% coon|  srim]  eozpy|l0 e i poft wheres
Dey i ari there is no ygnificant
preciation hange in Capital emploved.
and Finance charge in Capial e i
st
11 - [Return on Investreat® NA NA HA NA NA NA -
< Sincr the The company does not have any inventory, this ratio is not applicable.
of are d. Thus, this ratio is

A YThe company has neither made any pew investment, noc declared any dividend in the currentyear, further, all the jnvesn
ot applicable a5 well,

33, Qualitstive dhsdosures pertaining to Schedule 1]

{i The Company do not have Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated of pending against the company for holding any Berami property.

{55 The Company do not have sny transactions with companies struck off,

(i) The Company do nat have any charges o satisfaction which ks yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
{ivi The Campiny have not traded of invested in Crypto or Virtuai Currency during the yeat ended 31 March 2022,

{v} The Company have not advanced of loaned ot invested fu
the intermegiary shall:

nds to-any other person(s) or entityties), inckeding foreign entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding that

Heiaries)t

irectty or indirectly fend o invest in other persons of entities ientified inany manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the pany {Uitimate B

.provide any guarantie, security of the fike 1o oron behatf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.
{¥} The Company bave not received any fund from any personds] of entity{ ies),
of otherwise } that the Company shall

directly or indirectly kend or Trvest in other persons of entities
-provide any EUITINtRE, SeCUTY OF the like on the behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries.

v} The Company have rot any such transaction which is
23sesiments Uncer The incame Tax A1, 1561 {such as, search orany other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961,

inchiding foreign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing

identified in any manner whatsoever by of on behatl of the fynding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaties);

ot recorded in the books of sccounts That has been sutrendered or disclosed as income duting the year in thi tax

{wisi} Yhe Company has complied with the rumber of Lryets prescribed under clause (87} of section 2of the Act read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers}

Rules, 3057
fo] The Company is not dectered wilful defaciier by and bank ot financials institution or lendet uring the period.
{4} The Compsny has sied the borruwings from banks and financial imtitutions for the specific purpose Tar which it was obtained.

{xi} The are no stie deeds a3 the Company doct not have any immovible property.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Pliombino Steel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Piombino Steel Limited (“the
Holding Company”), and its subsldiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as
“the Group”), comprising of consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated: statement
of profit and loss including statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement
and consolidated statement of changes in equity and for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting  policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements and financial information of
the subsidiary referred to in sub - paragraph (a) of the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2022 and their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated
cash flows and their consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consoildated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements’ section of our report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financiai
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing sa, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a
material misstatement of this other mformatlon, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consclidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015,
as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group: are responsible for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the P mssof the Act for




safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial -
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We aiso:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, deslgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

v Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements represent the underlymg
transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation,

= Obtein sufficient- appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinicn on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the d;rectlon, supervision and -
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities inciuded in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other audltors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the aud Scarried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audlt opinion. %




We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of one subsidiary, whose
_financial statements and other financial information refiect total assets of Rs.22,232.49 Crores as at
March 31, 2022, and total revenues of 21,454.72 Crores and net cash outflows amounting to
Rs.2,212.42 Crores for the year ended on that date as considered in the consolidated financial
statements whose financial statements and other financial information. These financial statement and
other financial information have been audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us
by the management which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have
been furnished to us by the managements. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, In
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report
in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary
is based solely on the report of the other auditor. '

b. The Regional Director, Western Region vide his order dated May 06, 2022 has approved the Scheme
of Amalgamation of West Waves Maritime and Allied Services Private Limited ("WWMASPL") with the
Company and their respective Shareholders under section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect
from December 01, 2021. As described in note 45 of the consolidated financial statéments, effect of
the merger of West Waves Maritime and Allied Services Private Limited ("WWMASPL") with the
Company has been accounted retrospectively for all periods presented (i.e. with effect from December
01, 2021) being a common control transaction. Accordingly, financial figures of previous year are
strictly not comparable.

Our-opinion on the above consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the report of the other auditor,




o

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditor on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the
subsidiary, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We / the other auditor whose report we have relied upoh have sought and obtalned all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolldated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and report of other auditor.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesald consolidated financial statements comply with -the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and reports of
the other statutory auditors who are appointed under section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group companies Is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section {2) of Section 164 of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B" to
this report.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of sub-section (16} of Section 197 of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of report of other statutory auditor of the Subsidiary
Company incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has
been paid / provided by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company incorporated in India to
their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Scheduie (V) to the Act.

4ofBfPage




h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule (11)

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opin

ion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditor on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of

the subsidiary, as noted in the *Other matter’ paragraph:

i,  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 46 to the consolidated financial

statements.

i, The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,

3022 for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and.

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

g oWl

parth P Patel {L o \FRN: 109574W ) ¢
M. No. 172670 f\g? &
UDIN: 22172670ANDNWF2384 &s\k‘ &/

. (7 oty
Place: Mumbai 20400
Date: May 24, 2022 A
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62

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

peferred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of cur report of even date

Re: Piombino Steel Limited {“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
hooks of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and bellef, we state that:

(od) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order (CARD) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Name CIN Holding Ciause Remarks
company [ | number of
subsidiary / | the CARO
associate/ | report which
joint venture | is qualified or
, . ig adverse )
Piombino  Steel”] U27320MH2018PLC374653 | Holding (xvii} Cash losses in
Limited Company the immediately |
| preceding
financial year -:
Rs. 5.07 Crores
Bhushan Power | U27100DL1999PLC108350 | Subsidiary - (H(cy :Title deed of"
and Steel Limited ) | Land not in the
{BPSL) ~name of BPSL -
“Rs.28.47 Crores
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(B)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date) .

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Piombino Steel Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”)as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”),
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of. the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criterta established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financlal Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Company based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements was estsblished and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements
and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements .

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statemants is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financdial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recei ‘s and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 0t
Company; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance regarding preventigh-¢




acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company"s assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or Improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financlal reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in
india, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria pstablished by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matlers

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these cansolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company, insofar as it relates to the one Subsidiary Company, which is a company incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such subsidiary incorporated in India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W m

> _%:{
( | womBAl
»

+ih P Patel \o FRN: 109574W.
M. No. 172670 AN /&
UDIN: 22172670ANDNWF238\’§;§3\§‘“~/‘/{

Place; Mumbai %/

Date: May 24, 2022
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Piombino Steel Limited

Consolidated balance sheet as on 31 March, 2022 {Rs. in Crores)
Note As at As at ’
No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
| ASSETS
Non current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 12,735.97 13,376.26
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3(a) 845.98 691.94
(c) Right-of-use 4 898.53 $10.76
(d) Intangible assets 5 13.19 77.06
(e) Intangible assets under development 3{b) 3.41 2.41
() Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 - -
(i)} Loans 7 0.23 0.38
(iii) Other financial assets 8 156.47 83.77
(g) Current tax assets (net) 9 2.38 10.38
{n) Other non-current assets 10 87.74 24.77
Total non current assets 14,743.90 15,177.73
Current assets
(@) Inventories 11 4,856.11 2,235.61
{b) Financial assets
() Investments 12 1.60 1.41
(ii) Trade receivables 13 1,139.69 779.87
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 14 548,29 2,817.14
(iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 15 575.78 161.21
{(v) Loans 16 1.78 0.91
(vi) Other financial assets 17 55.04 276
(c) Other current assets 18 652.01 501.99
Total current assets 7,831.30 8,500.90
Asset classified as held for sale 19 - 0.13
Total assets 22,575.20 21,678.76
II' EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
(8) Equity share capital 20 6,082.92 1,667.29
(b} Other equity 21 4,859.81 2,237.51
(c) Money received against share warrants 14,00 14.00
Total equity 10,966.73 3,918.80
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 7,128.87 16,058.92
(i) Lease liabilities 48 8.93 9.40
(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 241.29 4,55
(b) Pravisions 24 53.08 61.62
(c) Deferred tax liability 38 - 346.07
Total non current liabilities 7,432,17 16,480.56
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
() Lease liabilities 48 2.04 1.53
(ii) Trade payables 25
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises; and . 115.32 127.26
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 3,448.77 676.09
(iii) Other financial liabilities 26 349.86 180.11
(b} Provisions 27 3.27 5.18
(c) -Other current liabilities 28 257.04 289.23
Total current liabilities 4,17;_30 4,279.40
Total liabilities 11,608.47 17,759.96
Total equity and liabilities 22.575.20 21,678.76

See accompanying notes to consolidat d financial

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Parth P Patel
Partner
Membership No.: 172670

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Kaustubh Kulkami
Chief Executive Officer

Divyakumar Bhair

Director
DIN: 08568679

Alok Kumar Mishra
Company Secretary

1CS1 Membership No. ACS 15967

Anil Kumar Singh
Director
DIN: 02059803}

Mohit Goyal
Chief Financial Officer




Piombino Steel Limited
Consolidated statement of profit & loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars Note Forthe year ended For the yeér ended
No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
| Revenue from operations 29 21,969.38 415.46
i Otherincome 30 45.70 0.29
Il Total income (I+1) 22,015.08 415.75
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 31 10,182.89 114.96
Pyrchases of stock- in- trade 952.61 33.57
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 32 (325.64) 63.93
Employee benefits expense 33 393.27 9.37
Finance costs 34 1,171.08 33.01
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 35 1,292.21° 17.30
Other expenses ) 36 4,343,99 49.93
Total expenses 18,010.41 322.07
V  Profit before tax attributable to owners of the Company (lll-1V) 4,004.67 93.68
VI Tax expense 38 s i
Current tax 26.39 -
Deferred tax (40.90) {1.79)
Total tax credit (14.51) {1.79)
VIi  Profit for the year (V-V} 4,019.18 95.47
Vill Other comprehensive income (OCl)
i. ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement gains / (losses) cn defined benefit plans 8,85 (0.03)
ii. Income tax refated to items which will not be reclassified to profit and loss - -
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 8.85 {0.03)
IX Total comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to owners of the Company for i )
the year (VI+VIli) 4,028.03 95.44
X  Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 37(b)
(1) Basic 9.94 29,33
(2) Diluted 3.64 0.14
Ses accompanying notes to consolidated finangial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W
Parth P Patel Kaustubh Kulkarni Divyakumar Bhair Anil Kumar Singh
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director Director

Membership No.: 172670

DIN: 08568679

Alok Kumar Mishra
Company Secretary

1CS1 Membership No. ACS 15967

Place; Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2022

DIN: 02059903

Mohit Goyal
Chief Financial Officer
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Piombino Steel Limited .
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March, 2022

{Rs. in Crores}

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 *

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 4,004.67 93.68
Adjustments:
Depreciation & amortisation expenses 1,292.21 17.30

“|Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment (net) {0.91) -
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange differences (net) (9.16) (3.93)
Fair value gain arising from financial Instruments designated as FVTPL (mutual funds) {0.18) (0.01)
Finance costs 1,171.08 33.01
Provision for doubtful debts, loans & advances - 2.07
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts, loans & advances {1.04) -
Interest income {43.32) {0.28)
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,413.34 141.84
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (2,704.05) 58.46
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (348.85) 29,06
Increase in other assets (1,006.21) (33.50)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payable 3,181.44 (61.03)
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities 99.43 55.98
Decrease in provisions (1.60) -
Cash flows from operating activities 5,633.50 190.81
Income tax paid - {17.92) (0.26) |
Net cash g ted from operating activiti 5,615.58 190.55 |
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (848.54) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.44 <
Invesiment in fixed deposits - (47.84)
Cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary (0.31) (19,350.00)
Interest received 41.34 -
Net cash used in investing activities (805.07) {19,397.84)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 972.20
Finance costs paid {790.27) (151,23}
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 10,800.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (6,299.22) -
Annual Fees Paid (43.74) -
Proceeds from borrowings from a related party 56.00 2,634.18
Money received against share warranis - 14.00
Share issue expenses paid - . {0.05)
Payment of lease liability (1.16) -
Proceeds from issue of compulsorily convertible debentures (financial instruments) - 5,120.00
Net cash flows from/ {used in) financing activities {7,078,39) 19,389.10
Net (decreass) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,267.88) 181.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,817.14 0.86
Cash and cash equivalents on merger / business acquisition (refer note 45) 0.03 2,634.48
Cash and cash equivalents at year end (refer note 14} 549,29 2,817.14
* Refer note 45 in respect of implementation of resolution plan.
Note:
|. The statement of cash flows is prepared using the “indirect method"” set out in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows",
II. Reconciliations part of cash flows
Particulars Borrowings Equity Total
Balance as on 31 March, 2021 16,058.92 1,667.29 17,726.21
R ion of liability component of iy Tully converlible debentures (OFCDs) on conversion to equity (2,768.55) - (2,768.55)
Unamortised upfront fees } 13 - .73
Loan from parent company .00 - 56.00

" [Repayment of long term loan (6,299.22) - (6,299.22)
Shares issued pursuant to conversion of OFCDs - 2,797.55 2,797.5:
Recl of equity component within equity N ,628.08 ,628.01
Balance as on 31 March, 2022 7,128.87 6,092.92 13,221.7!

See d financial

p

ying notes to

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Parth P Patel
Partner
Membership No.: 172670

Kaustubh Kulkarni
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Divyakumar Bhair
Director
DIN: 08568679

Alok Kumar Mishra
Company Secretary

ICS) Membership No, ACS 15967

Anil Kumar Singh
Director|
DIN: 02059903

Mohit Goyal
Chief Financial Officer




1.

b)

a)

b)

General Information

Piombino Steel Limited (“the Group” “the parent’ ) was incorporated in India on September 21, 2018 under
the Companies Act, 2013 with its registered office located at 6th Floor, JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051. '

The Group is engaged in the business of buying, selling and otherwise trading or dealing in steel and its

* allied products, iron ore, coal, coke, brick-earth, ores, minerals and mineral substance, alloys and metal

scrap of all kinds.

Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards / amendments under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of

items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted -
from directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. The

effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April, 2022.

Ind AS 37 | Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets — The amendment specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly
to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April,
2022, although early adoption is permitted. » :

Ind AS 103 | Business combinations — The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities
and contingent liabilities. :

Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies
the “10%’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or
received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

There is no impact of these amendments on the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under the Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirement of Division Il of Schedule IlI of the
Companies Act 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule 1lf), as applicable to consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, the Group has prepared these Consolidated Financial Statements which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date,
and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated
financial statements”). .

These consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 May, 2022.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain financial instruments that are required to be measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below, and acquisition of subsidiaries where assets
and liabilities are measured at fair values as at the date of acquisition in accordance with Ind AS 103.



Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes in account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 1186, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value
in Ind AS 2 or value in-use in Ind AS 36.

The consolidated ﬁnanbial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs,
except when otherwise indicated.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:
o Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
¢ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Current and non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
o Itis expected {o be settled in normal operating cycle
e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
-and cash equivalents.

Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and its
subsidiaries. '

Control is achieved where the Group:

* has power over the investee

* is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability fo use its power {o affect its returns

The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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When the Group has less than majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee

when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not

the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including;

¢ the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

+ potential voting rights held by the Group, ather vote holders or other parties;

s rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases-when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure:

» Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recogniséd in the consolidated financial statements at the
acquisition date.

« Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent's
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any
related goodwill.

« Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Iniragroup losses
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS
12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses
resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries fo bring
their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Cost includes all costs relating to acquisition and installation of Property, plant and equipment including
any incidental costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use, including relevant
borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred
after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred.

Where cost of the part of the asset is significant to total cost of asset and useful life of that part is different
from useful life-of the asset, useful life and the value of that significant part shall be determined separately
through internal/external expert. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalised as the activities undertaken improves the
economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

Assets in the course of construction are reflected in capital work in progress. At the point when an asset is
operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to appropriate category of
Property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalized where
the asset is available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until a period of commissioning has
been completed. Revenue (net of cost) generated from producticn during the trial period is capitalized.
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Derecognition

The carrying amount of a property, plant and equipment is de-recognized when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or on disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the consolidated statement profit & loss.

Machinery spares that can be used only in connection with an-item of Property, plant and equipment &
where use are expected is more than one year are capitalized along with plant & machinery.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for-assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on all property
plant and equipment except freehold land are provided on a straight line method on the basis of the useful
life prescribed in schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 or the economic useful lives determined as per
technical assessment. In case of below mentioned class of assets, life of the assets has been determined
as per technical assessment.

Class of assets Years

Plant and equipment 4 to 38 years
Building 20 to 50 years
Computer & computer accessories 3 years
Work-rolls (shown under Plant and equipment) 1 years

Mobile Phone & Individual Assets acquired for '5,000/- or less are depreciated over a period of one year of
acquisition.

The useful lives are reviewed annually. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from
previous estimates, the depreciation period is changed accordingly.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts), including any import
duties and non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its
intended use.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Costs incurred ontechnical know-how/ license fee relating to process design/ plants/ facilities are capitalized
at the time of capitalization of the said plant/ facility and amortized on pro-rata basis over a period of five
years. Computer software is capitalised on the date of installation and is amortised on pro-rata basis over a
period of five years.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use. Gain and loss arising from de-recognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized or on disposal.

Useful lives of Intangible assets:

Class of assets ' Years
Computer Software & Licenses 3 -5 years
Coal Linkage Rights Over the period of rights




f) Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale and the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once classified as
held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items
in the balance sheet.

g) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value except Scrap which is valued at net

realizable value.

Cost of raw materials includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include cost of direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but
excluding borrowing costs.

Costs of inventories are determined on first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis except Stores & Spares which are
valued on the basis of weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

h) Revenue from contract with customer
a) Revenue from sale of goods
The Group recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.
The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it
typically controls the goods.or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
concessions, incentives, or other similar items in a-contract when they are highly probable to be
provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to
customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is
transferred to the customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Group and recovered from
the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation and revenue is recognized
when such freight services are rendered.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Group accounts for individual
products and services separately if they are distinct — i.e. if a product or service is separately
identifiable from other items in the arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration
is allocated between separate products and services in the arrangement based on their stand-alone selling
prices. Revenue from sale of by products is included in revenue.

Revenue from sale of power is recognised when delivered and measured based on the bilateral
contractual arrangements.

Contract balances

i) Contract assets including trade receivables

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration.



A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered and to the extent that it has-an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

iy Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has -
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group fransfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract including Advance received from Customer

i) Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer
including volume rebates and discounts. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end of
each reporting period.

b) Dividend & Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currency transactions

The Group’s financials are presented in INR, which is functional currency of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, transactions in-currencies other than the Group's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period:

i. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the rates prevailing at that date.

i. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. The.gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

iii. Non-monetary items that are measured terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not restated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous
consolidated financial statements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans such as provident fund are recognized as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when an employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefits Plan :

For defined retirement benefit plans, such as gratuity the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
period. ,

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

» service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on-
curtailments and seftlements);

¢ net interest expense or income; and

e remeasurement
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The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through-OCl in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in
the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resuiting from this calculation is limited to the present value
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits '

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service. These benefits include bonus/incentives and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to ocecur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised based on actuarial valuation at the present
value of the obligation as on the reporting date using.the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the consolidated statement of profit and loss and are not

_deferred

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Board of directors of the Group has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker which
reviews and assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic decisions.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortlzatlon of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings and exchange differences arising from forelgn currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to finance cost.

Borrowing Cost that are aftributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use.

The Group determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs
incurred on that borrowing during the year less any interest income earned on temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Group borrows generally and uses
the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
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All other borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated stat'ement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they occur. )

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contragct is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. .

Right-of-use assets ’

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the lease The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease [iabilities and comprises of the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any [ease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease
term. In the case of Lands on lease, the assets are amortized over the lease period except where the lease
period more than 90 years.

Class of assets - Years
Leasehold land 30-99 Years
Office Lease 2 years

Ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment testing.

Lease Liabilities :

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabiliies measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the

-lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the

commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of real
estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered of low value. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



Group as lessor

|eases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of'an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

n) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

i} Financial assets

a) Recognition and initial measurement
A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

b) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair

value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss. A financial

asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at

FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

recognised at FVTPL,; .

+ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OClI).
However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a f|nanCIaI asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains
and losses arising on remeasurement recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss. The net
gain or loss recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets
at FVTPL is recognized when:

¢ The Group's right to receive the dividends is established,

« Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity,

« The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of

dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party.

Impairment

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and
other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated
as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e.
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased 519nlflcantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected
credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12
months.

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model
in the previous year, but determines at the end of a reporting year that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous
year, the Group again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost
or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
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For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally
applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators
of future economic conditions; the Group expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees ‘and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt mstrument or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss and
is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds -
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL. :

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon

initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise,

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

. It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI.

The Group derecognises financial fiabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss

Other financial liabilities:
The Group enters into deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby overseas lenders such
as banks and other financial institutions make payments to supplier's banks for import of raw materials
and property, plant and equipment. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the
Group at a later date providing working capital benefits. These arrangements are in the nature of credit
extended in normal operating cycle and these arrangements for raw materials are recognized as
Acceptances (under trade payables) and arrangements for property, plant and equipment are
recognised as other financial liabilities. Interest borne by the Group on such arrangements is accounted
- as finance cost. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group'’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when
performance obligations are met.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates.



p) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares .
outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the
Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees.

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the eurrent tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861 and other
applicable tax laws in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits
in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as a deferred tax asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset
in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit-associated with it will flow to the
Group. ‘

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and deferred {ax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current -
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
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Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss, except when they are
relating to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination. y

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the relevant entity intends to seftle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial asset

At the end of each reporting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Provisions :

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its.
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material) discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost. .

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Trade receivables above ninety days and against whom any legal cases filed/to be filed are treated as
doubtful in nature and accordingly provision has been made.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.
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Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. However,
before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any write down
that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. An onerous contract is considered to exist where
the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract. The unavoidable costs
under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs
directly related to contract activities). )

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occcurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits
with an original maturity of less than three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For this
purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measured at their acquisition date fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in Consolidated
special purpose Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

» deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

+ liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at
the acquisition date; and

o -assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard. ’

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification. and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed.
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In case of bargain purchase, before recognizing gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether
there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase. Thereafter, the group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and recognizes any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in
that reassessment. The Group then reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS
requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment
and review, the Group recognizes it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity
as capital reserve. This gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there does not exist clear evidence of the
underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognises
the gain, after reassessing and reviewing, directly in equity as capital reserve.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
-acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the Consolidated special purpose Statement of Profit
and Loss:

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another Ind AS.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the financial year, the
provisional amounts for which the accounting is incomplete shall be disclosed in the financial statements
and provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date shall be retrospectively adjusted during the
measurement period. During the measurement period, the group shall also recognize additional assets or
liabilities if the new information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date and if known, would have resulted in the recognition of those assets and liabilities as of that date.
However, the measurement period shall not exceed the period of one year from the acquisition date.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the Grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgment,
estimates and assumptions which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statement.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives
based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expected in future periods.

Contingent Liabilities '

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved
only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence,
and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and the
use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.



d) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement.is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Critical accounting judgements
a) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset)
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Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

&

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

NOTE - 6 Investments (non current )
Carried at fair value through profit & loss

Investments in equity instruments

Quoted

Nova Iron & Steel Limited*

92,69,146 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid -up
Orissa Sponge Iron & Steel Limited

840 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid -up

Unguoted
Bijahan Coal Private Limited*

9,500 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Ambey Steel & Power Private Limited*

28,14,215 equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up
Rohne Coal Company Private Limited*

2,40,900 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Skap Electronics Private Limited '

980 equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up

Aggregate value of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Aggregate value of investments carried at cost

*Note:

The Group has reassessed these investments as per the principles of Ind AS 110 and Ind AS
28 and has determined that it does not exercise control or has significant influence over these
entities. Accordingly, the Group is measuring them at fair value through profit and loss account
as per the principles of Ind AS 109. The Group has recorded these investments at fair value
which has been determined to be nil on the date of reclassification. Refer note 45 in respect of
implementation of resolution plan.

NOTE - 7 Loans (non current)
Loans and advances to employees
Unsecured-considered good
Unsecured-considered doubtful

Total
Less: Provision for doubtful advances

NOTE - 8 Other financial assets (non current)
Security deposits
Unsecured-considered good
Unsecured-considered doubtful

Total
Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits

Interest receivable
Term deposits with bank with maturity more than 12 months*

0.23 0.38
0.09 0.09
0.32 0.47
(0.09) (0.09)
0.23 0.38
142,10 66.93
2.14 -
144.24 66.93
(2.14) -
142.10 66.93
4.95 2.12
9.42 14,72
156.47 83.77

* Under bank lien against Rs. 9.42 crores margin money.




Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

Ao

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
NOTE - 9 Current tax assets (net})
Advance payment of tax and TDS (net of provision for tax) 2.38 10.38
2.38 10.38
NOTE - 10 Other non current assets
Capital advance
Unsecured-considered good 84.18 24,33
Unsecured-considered doubfful 1.26 -
Total 85.44 24.33
Less: provision for doubtful capital advances 1.25 -
84.19 24.33
Prepaid expenses 3.55 0.44
87.74 24.77
NOTE - 11 Inventories (at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 2,279.97 490.23
Raw materials-in-transit 601.31 191.14
Work-in-progress 268.81 160.69
Finished goods 1,123.94 1,049.75
Finished goods-in-transit 59.04 -
Production consumables and stores & spares 477.78 343.80
Production consumables and stores & spares (stock-in-transit) 44.26 -
4,856.11 2,235.61
Note:
(1) Value of inventories above is stated after write down by Rs. 12.58 crores (previous year nil) fo net
realisable value. These were recognised as an expense during the year and included in changes in
inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade.
(2) Inventories have been pledged as security against certain bank borrowings, details relating to which
has been described in note 22,
(3) Refer note 50 for change in the method of measuring cost of inventory.
NOTE - 12 Investments
Investment carried at fair value through profit & loss
Quoted, fully paid up
Canara Robeco Emerging Equities-
Regular Growth*
19,272.672 units (previous year 19,272.672 units) of *10 each 0.30 0.28
Canara Robeco Flexi Cap Fund- Regular
Growth** - -
13,798.786 units (previous year 13,798.786 units) of 10 each 0.31 0.25
DSP Credit Risk-Regular Plan-Growth - -
3,00,896.285 units (previous year 3,00,896.285 units) of 10 each 0.99 0.91
1.60 1.41
Aggregate value of quoted investments 1.60 1.41
Aggregate value of unquoted investments ¥ - -
Aggregate value of investments carried at cost - -
* Nil units (previous year 9,264 units) are under lien with erstwhile lender.
**Nil units (previous year 13,798.786 units) are under lien with erstwhile lender.




Piombino Steel Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at

As at
31 March 2021

NOTE - 13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Total

Less: provision for doubtful debts

31 March 2022

1,139.69 779.87
10.11 22.13
1,149.80 1802.00
10.11 22.13
1,139.69 779.87

Notes:

1) Neither trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade
receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. .

2) Trade receivables from related parties, details have been described in note- 48.
3) Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note- 42.4.
4) Trade receivables have been given as collatera! security towards borrowings has been described in note - 22.

5) Trade receivables ageing done considering implementation of resolution plan. (refer note 45)

{Rs. in Crores)

Trade receivables ageing as at 31 March 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment " Total
Unbilled | Notdue | Lessthan 6 |6 months 12 |2-3years| Morethan3
months 1 year years years
Undisputed trade receivables - considered - 388.13 '733.08| 1574 - - - 1,136.96
good
Undisputed trade receivables - which - - 10.11 - - - - 10.11
have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables - credit - - - - - - - -
impaired :
Disputed trade receivables - considered - - 2.73 - - - - 2,73
good
Disputed trade receivables - which have - - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables - credit - - - - - - - -
impaired
Total - 388.13 | 745.93 15.74 - - - 1,149.80

Trade receivables ageing as at 31 March 2021

(Rs. in Crores)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Total
Unbilled | Notdue | Lessthan6 |6 months{ 1-2 [2-3 years| More than3
months 1 year years years

Undisputed trade receivables - considered - - 1779.80° 0.07 - - - 779.87
good
Undisputed trade receivables - which - - 2213 - - - - 22,13
have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables - credit - - - - - - - -
impaired
Disputed trade receivables - considered - - - - - - - N
good
Disputed trade receivables - which have - - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables - credit - - - - - - - -
impaired
Total - - 801.93 0.07 - - - 802.00

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 90 days with ar without security. Trade receivables does not include any receivables from directors
and officers of the Grqup. Trade receivables from related parties' details has been described in note 48,




Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

" (Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at

NOTE -

NOTE -

NOTE -

NOTE -

NOTE -

NOTE -

14 Cash and casﬁ equivalents

Balances with banks

- In current accounts

- In cash credit accounts

- Term deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on-hand

15 Other bank balances

Earmarked balances in current accounts* :

Term deposits lien with banks with maturity of less than 3 months*

Term deposits with banks having maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12
months**

* Includes Rs. 49.09 crores (previous year Rs. 50.00 crores) set aside for meeting likely
litigation arising from The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) and Rs. 129.59
crores (previous year nil) in escrow account for operational creditors payment.

**Under lien against margin money

*** Includes Rs. 322.98 crores (previous year Rs. 28.53 crores) under lien against
margin money

16 Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees

Interest recoverable from employees

17 Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Claims recoverable

Gratuity recoverable from fund
Security deposits

Other receivables

Interest receivable

Other receivables

18 Other current assets
Advances to suppliers/others

Unsecured-considered good
Unsecured-considered doubtful
Total
Less: provision for doubtful advances

Prepaid expenses
Balances with government authorities
Other

19 Assets held for sale
Discarded assets held for disposal

31 March 2021

182.01 758.09
1.28 5.30
365.86 2,053.68
0.14 0.07
549.29 2,817.14
179.96 50.00

69.26 -
326.56 111.21
575.78 161.21
1.76 0.85
0.02 0.086
1.78 0.91
1.10 0.04
0.02 0.39
0.51 0.01
53.15 2.32

0.26 -
55.04 2.76
327.70 330.71
0.73 0.42
328.43 331.13
0.73 0.42
327.70 330,71
11.48 7.37
312.81 163.91

0.02 -
852.01 501.99
- 0.13

0.13




Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

{Rs. in Crores)

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No, of Shares Amount No. of shares Amount
NOTE - 20 Share capital
a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 12,000,000,000 12,000.00 12,000,000,000 12,000.00
12,000,000,000 12,000.00 12,000,000,000 12,000.00
b) Issued, subscribed & paid up )
Equity shares outstanding-at the beginning of the year 2,000,000,000 1,867.29 7,795,786 7.80
Add: equity shares issued during the year for cash - - 972,204,214 872.20
Add: Shares issued pursuant to conversion of OFCDs 4,100,000,000 2,797.55 1,020,000,000 687.29
Add: Reclassification of equity component within equity . 1,628.08 - -
Equity shares at the end of the year 6,100,000,000 6,092.92 2,000,000,000 1,667.29
NOTE - 20,1 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company No, of shares % of holding: No. of shares % of holding
{Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid - up}
JSW Steel Limited (including nominees}) 5,080,000,000 83.28% 980,000,000 49.00%
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited 1,020,000,000 16.72% 1,020,000,000 51.00%

NOTE - 20.2 Promotor's shareholding

(Equity shares of “10 each fully paid - up
JSW Steel Limited (including nominees)
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited

No. of shares

5,080,000,000
1,020,000,000

% of holding

83.28%
- 18.72%

Changes during the year

418.37%
0.00%

20.3 Shares issued pursuant to conversion of optionally fully convertible debentures (OFCDs) issued to JSW Shipping

The Company issued 6%, 1,020,000,000 (face value of Rs. 10 each) optionally fully convertible debentures to JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (JSW Shipping) with a term of
ten years, Each OFCD was optionally convertible into one equity shares of the Company having face value of Rs. 10 each before the expiry of the term and at the sole option of the
OFCD holders. JSW Shipping has invoked the conversion option on March 27, 2021 and converted the OCFDs held by them into equity shares of the Company. Accordingly, the
Company issued 1,020,000,000 equity shares (face value of Rs. 10 each) pursuant to conversion of optionally fully convertible debentures.

20.4 Shares issued pursuant to conversion of optionally fully convertible debentures (OFCDs) issued to JSW Steel

Pursuant to the subscription and shareholder's agreement between the Company, JSW Steel and JSW Shipping, JSW Steel had subscribed to certain OFCDs of the Company. As per
the terms of OFCDs, including revisions thereto, JSW Steel has the option to convert the OFCDs into equity shares at any time at the option of JSW Steel. Accordingly, JSW Steel has
exercised the option of conversion of 4,100,000,000 OFCDs held by JSW Steel in the Company into 4,100,000,000 equity shares of the Company of face value of Rs. 10 each on
October 1, 2021, Pursuant to the conversion, JSW Steel holds 83.28% equity in the Company and JSW Shipping holds 16.72% equity in the Company. Subsequent to the aforesaid
conversion, the Company has now become a subsidiary of JSW Steel.

20.5 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs.10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for one vote per share held, The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution
of all preferential amount, in proporticn to their shareholding.

NbTE 21 - Other equity

- As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
(i) Retained eamings 402401 88.10
(ii} Capital reserve arising on business combination 826.97 826.49
(iiiy Capital reserve 0.01 0.0
{iv) Equity component of compound financial instrument - 1,322.91
{v) Other comprehensive income 8.82 -
Total 4,858.81 2,237.51

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i} Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained
eamnings is a free reserve available to the Group,
{ii} Capital reserve
Capital reserve will be utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(iii} Money received against issue of share warrants .
The Group has issued 3,500,000,000 share warrants each to JSW Steel and JSW Shipping respectively with a subscription price of Rs. 0.02 per warrant. The exercise period
is five years from the days of issue of the warrants and the warrant holders at their discretion shall be entitled to purchase one equity share of the face value of Rs. 10 each at
an exercise price of Rs 10.

{iv) Capital reserve arising on business combination
The excess of fair value of net assets acquired over the consideration paid in a business combination is recognised as capital reserve. The reserve is not available for

{v}  Equity component of compound financial instruments )
The Group has issued aptionally fully convertible debentures (OFCDs) to JSW Steel and JSW Shipping on March 24, 2021. The Group has computed the liability portion of
OFCDs as the present value of the contractual abligations with the instrument and the difference between the issue amount of OFCDs and the liability so computed has been
treated as 'equity component of optianally fully convertible debentures’ and grouped under other equity. The OFCDs issued to JSW Shipping and JSW Steel have been
converted into equity shares of the Group with effect from March 27, 2021 and October 1, 2021 respectively. The equity component of optionally fully convertible debentures is
reclassified within equity and grouped under equity share capital upon conversion of both OFCDs issued to JSW Steel and JSW Shipping. ’

{vi) Other Comprehensive Income .
Balance in ather comprehensive income shall be utilised as per the specific provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and requirements under Indian Accounting Standards.



Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
NOTE - 22 Borrowings
(i) Bonds/debentures
Optionally fully convertible debentures (liability component) - 2,768.55
Non-convertible bonds (NCBs) ' 2,500.00 -
Less: Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings ) (30.78} (37.38)
2,469.22 2,731.17
Term Loans
From Banks 4,500.00 10,799.22
Less: Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings (30.53) {105.66)
4,469.47 10,693.56
From a related party 180.18 2,634.19
) 7,128.87 16,058.92

A.

Terms of borrowings

Term loans from banks:

1.Rs. 4,500 crores (previous year Rs. 7,300 crores), payable at the end of three years from the first disbursement date i.e. 25 March 2021,
Interest @7.95% p.a. (6 months MCLR+100bps) at monthly rest.

2.Nil (previous year Rs. 3,500 crores), payable at the end of three years from the first disbursement date i.e. 25 March 2021, Interest
@8.15% p.a.(1 year MCLR+SP+50bps) at monthly rest.

Security

Term loans from banks:

The term loans from banks are aggregating to Rs. 4,500 crores (previous year Rs. 10,800 crores), secured by way of first pari passu charge
on immovable properties situated at Odisha, Kolkata and Chandigarh, aggregating to Rs. 1,481 Crores and also first pari passu charge on
the entire fixed assets other than immoveable property, both present and future. Second charge on the entire current assets consisting of
receivables, book debts and Inventories both present and future along with the insurance contracts an the inventories. First charge on the
escrow account and the residual assets, both present and future and further secured by corporate guarantee of JSW Steel Ltd., ultimate
holding company:

. Loan from parent company

Rs. 190.18 crores (previous year 2,634,18 crores), payable after 42 months from the first disbursement date namely 24.March 2021 Interest
@7.90% p.a. will be accrued and paid with the principal after 42 months.

The Parent company has borrowed from JSW Steel amounting to Rs. 4 Crores bearing an interest rate of 10.75% and is repayable on March
31, 2024. The principal and accrued nterest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of the Parent company, and rank pari passu with any
other unsecured and unsubordinated.creditors of the Parent company. .

The Parent company has borrowed from JSW Steel amounting to Rs. 52 Crores bearing an interest rate of 11.25% and is repayable on

March 31, 2024. The principal and accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of the Parent company, and rank pari passu with
any other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors of the Parent company.

. Liability component of compound financial instruments

6% OFCDs having face value of Rs. 10 aggregating to Rs. 4,100 Crores are convertible by JSW Steel Limited after the end of 3 years from
the date of issue or in the event of a merger of the Company with any other entity, whichever is earfier at the sole option of JSW Steel
Limited. Each OFCD shail be converted into one equity share of the Company. At the end of the term, in case JSW Steel Limited has not
exercised the option of conversion and OFCDs have not been converted into equity shares of the Company, the OFCDs shall be redeemed
at par. The JSW Steel Limited OFCDs and any accrued interest thereon shall be unsecured obligations of the Company, and until conversion
of such OFCD in full shall rank pari passu with any other unsecured creditor of the Company. Subsequent to revision in conversion conditions,
JSW Steel Limited has the option to convert the OFCDs into equity shares at any time at the option of JSW Steel Limited, Accordingly, JSW
Steel Limited has exercised the optian of conversion of 4,100,000,000 OFCDs held by JSW Steel Limited in the Company into 4,100,000,000
equity shares of the Company of face value of Rs. 10 each on October 1, 2021 and the liability component has been reclassified to equity
share capital on conversion.

. Borrowings through NCBs

Particulars As at As at

31 March, 2022 31 March 2021
Non-Convertible Bonds (NCBs) 2,500 2,500
8% unsecured NCBs of Rs. 10,00,000 each of Rs. 2,500 Crores are redeemable on March

NOTE -

NOTE -

23 Other non-current financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on loan from related party 240.39 4.23
Security deposits 0.80 0.32
241.29 4.55

24 Provisions

Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 29.12 29.53
Provision for compensated absences ~ 23.96 32.09

(Refer note 39 on employee benefits) 53.08 . 81.62




Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming.part of C

Financial Stat

ts as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

aw

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
NOTE - 28 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises; and 115.32 127.26
Total outstanding' dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises
- Acceptances ' 1,183.49 -
- Other than acceptances (refer footnote 1) 2,265.28 676.09
3,664.09 803.35
otes:
1) Includes retention money Rs. 47,88 crores (previous year Rs. 4.36 crores)
2) Refer MSME disclosure in note 44
3) Trade payables to related parties, details have been described in note 48
4) Acceptances include credit availed by the Company from banks for payment ta suppliers of raw materials purchased by the Company.
(Rs. in Crores})
Ageing on year ended 31 March 2022
Particulars Qutstanding for following pertods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled l Not due ] Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
1 year
Acceptances 1.183.49
Other than Acceptances .
MSME - 44.83 70.49 - - - 115.32
Others 260.37 923.68 951.63 - - 57.38 2,183.08
Acceptances - - - - T . -
Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues — others - - - - - 72.21 72.21
Total 260.37 968.51 1,022.12 - - 129.59 3,664.08
Ageing on year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled l Not due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
1 year
Acceptances -
Other than Acceptances i
MSME - - 127.26 - - - 127.26
Others 200.10 0.15 222.41 25.57 10.71 145.50 604.44
Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues — others - - - - - 72.21 72.21
Total 200.10 0.16 349.67 25.57 10.71 217.711 803.91
NOTE - 26 Other financial liabilities (current)
Interest accrued on term loan / financial instruments 148.62 13.97
Security deposits ' 1.52 -
Provision for expenses 0.00 0.84
Provision for upfront fees 0.00 37.50
Derivative liabilities 14.62 -
Creditors for capital goods 184.10 127.80
349.86 180.11
NOTE - 27 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity 1.15 2.97
- Provision for compensated absences 2.12 2.21
(Refer note 39 on employee benefits) 3.27 5.18
NOTE - 28 Other current liabllities
Advances from customers (Refer note 47 for related parties) 162.24 119.05
Statutory dues payable 94.80 170.18
257.04 288.23




Piombino Steel Limited
Notes forming part of C

lidated Financial Stat ts as at & for the year ended 31 March, 2022

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2022

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

Q6

NOTE - 29 Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Domestic turnover

Export turnover

Total sales

Less: rebates & discounts/ sales retum

Sale of traded goods

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales

Sale of services (job work charges)
Export benefits and entitiements

Total revenue from operations

13,476.96 374.75
7,843.54 8.52
21,320.50| T 383.27).
(147.21) (5.33)
21,173.29 377.54
394,70 33.74
257.74 374
27.42 -
116.23 0.04
401.39] 3.78

21,968.38 415.46

b

Notes:
Product wise turnover

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March ?DZj
Tonnes ' Amount - Tonnes| Amount
Sales g -
Hot rolled coils/steel plates/sheets 1,128,257 7,459.66 20,578 91.63
Cold rolled coils/sheets 346,782 2,859.07 12,402 64.18
Galvanized coils/sheets 363,104 3,220.74 12,342 81.72
Color coated 184,173 1,859.22 7,085 50.63
Cable tape . 8,393 75.46 441 2.92
Longrolled products 429,364 2,750.82 9,181 45,90
Pipe 134,822 1,083.18 9,469 52.46
Pig iron 361,045 1,520.09 6,930 19.17
Spongs iron - - 56 0.08
Metallurgical coke - B 891 1.53
Others - 4.68 - 0.02
Trading sales -
Coal - fraded goods 163,622 394.70 1,734 1.07
Steel Products - traded goods 13 560.36 - -
Other - traded goods - - 10 0.36
Total, 21,667.99 411.68

Ind AS 115 - revenue from contracts with customers

The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods and services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the

consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for thase goods or services.

{Rs. In Crores)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended endez
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers - sale of products T 21,567.99] T 411,68
Other operating revenue ) 401.39 3.78
Total revenue from operations 21,969.38 41546
India 14,125.:84 406.94
Qutside India . 7.843.54 8.52
Total revenue from operations 21,969.38 415.46
Timing of revenue recognition N
At a point.in time 21,969.38 415.46
Total revenue from operations 21,969.38 415.46
Contract balances ) (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars As at “Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables (refer note 13) 1,139.69 779.87
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers (refer note 28) 162.24 119.05

The credit period on the sale of goods ranges from 7 to 60 days.

As at 31 March 2022 Rs.10.11 crores (previous year Rs. 22,13 crores) was recognised as provision for aliowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables.

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

For the year
ended

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

Amounts included in contract acquired liabilities on account of reverse acquisition as at the beginning of
the year .

Performance obligations satisfied in previous years

31 March 2022

Nil

Nil

32.93

Nil

Qut of the total contract liabilities outstanding as on 31 March 2022, Rs. 162.24 crores (previous year Rs. 1
2023.

Refund liabilities:

9.05 crores) will be recognised by 31 March

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Arising from volume rebates and discounts nefted in trade receivables (refer note 13) 42.39 10.33

The Company does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2022

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

NOTE - 30 Otherincome
Interest income
- from fixed deposits
- from customers
- from security deposits
- from employee advances
Fair value gain arising from financial Instruments designated as FVTPL
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment (net)
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts & advances (net)
Miscellaneous income

NOTE - 31 Cost of materials consumed
Raw materials consumed

NOTE - 32 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, stock-in-trade & work-In-
Progress *
Opening Stock
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade
Work-in-Progress
Total (A)
Closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Total (B)

Net (A-B)
) * Refer note 50 for change in the method of measuring cost of inventory.
NOTE - 33 Employee benefits expense

Salary and wages

Contribution to provident & other funds (refer note 39)

Staff welfare expenses

NOTE - 34 Finance costs
Interest
-On borrowings
-On unwinding of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
-On lease liabilities
-On others
Other borrowing costs

NOTE - 35 Depreciation & amortisation expenses
"~ Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note - 2)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

34.21 0.28
3.45 -
5.35 0.00
0.31 0.00
0.19 0.01
0.91 -
1.04 -
0.24 0.00

45.70 0.29
10,182.89 114.96
966.46 1,019.20
- 0.00
160.69 171.87
1,127.15 1,191.07
1,182.98 966.45
269.81 160.69
1,452.79 1,127.14
(325.84) 3.93
343.75 7.32
28.73 1.72
20.79 0.33
393.27 9.37
904.10 22.49
157.32 0.00
1.20 0.92
0.26 8.43
108.20 117
1,171.08 33.01
1,216.11 17.28
12.23 0.01
63.87 0.01
1,292.21 17.30
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{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the yeai ended
31 March 2021

NOTE - 36 Other expenses

Production consumables and Stores & spares consumed 996.79 17.80
Power & fuel 1,565.64 9.21
Rent 3.35 0.00
Repairs and maintenance:

- To machinery 92.84 0.00
- To building 12.02 0.0

Insurance 30.89 1.56

Rates and taxes 8.35 3.15

Legal & professional charges 52.54 0.00

Travelling & conveyance 10.85 0.00

Freight & forwarding 1,144.08 0.00

Contractor labour charges 385.05 7.11

Foreign currency exchange fluctuation (net) 9.69 -3.93

Director's sitting fees 0.12 0.08

Provision for doubtful debts, deposits, loans and advances 13.81 2.07

Monitoring professional costs - 0.24

Packing charges - 11.53

Miscellaneous expenses 17.87 1.06

: 4,343.99 49.93

37 {(a) Expenditure incurred on corporate social responsibility activities is as follows:

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 6.69 -

i) Amount spent during the year on -

- Construction / acquisition of any property, plant and equipment - -
~ On purpases other than the above 2.22 -

- The amount of shortfall at the end of the year required to be spent by the Group during the year 4.47 _

- The total of previous year shorifall amounts _ .

- The nature of CSR activities taken by the Group are as under: _
Integrated water resources management 0.30 R
Waste management & sanitation initiatives 0.31 -
COVID 19 support & rehabilation program 1.42 .
General community infrastructure support & welfare initiatives 0.19 _

Total 2,22 -

- Amount unspent, if any 4.47 _

- Detail of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the Group in relation
to'CSR expenditure as per relevant accounting standard.

- Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual

The unspent amount of CSR expenditure of Rs. 4.47 crores will be transferred to a specified bank account within 30 days from the end of the

financial year i.e. 30 April 2022 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

37 {b)- Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic/diluted earnings (A) 4,019.18 95.47
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (B) 4,044,383,562 32,551,512
Weighted numbers of shares on conversion of share warrants (C) 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000
Total weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (D) = (B)+(C) 11,044,383,562 7,032,551,512
Basic EPS (A/B) 9.94 29.33
Diluted EPS (A/D) 3.64 0.14
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(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

NOTE- 38 Income tax

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to -

recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:
Profit before tax

Enacted tax rate in India

Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits
Expenses not allowable

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Utilisation of tax benefits

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Deferred tax on elimination of interest income on consolidation

Tax expense for the year

Effective income tax rate

4,004.68 93.67
25.17% 26.00%
1,007.90 24.35
(162.62) {1.33)
8.55 1.32
(909.24) (335.23)
- 83.73
81.80 227.16
26.39 -
0.66% -

Deferred tax (net)

(Rs. in Crores)

Recognised /

Recognised /

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 reversed through reversed through 31 March 2022
profit and loss [o]¢]]
Equity component of optionally fully convertible debentures 346.07 (40.90) (305.17) -
Total 346.07 (40.90) (305.17) -
Recognised / Recognised /
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 reversed through reversed through 31 March 2022
. profit and loss 0OCl
Equity component of optionally fully convertible debentures - (1.79) 347.86 346.07
_ |Total - (1.79) 347.86 346.07

Footnotes

-

available in the future against which the net deferred tax assets can be utilised.

2 The Group also has business loss which can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year to
which the loss pertains majority of which will expire in 2025 and unabsorbed depreciation (UAD) which can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of MAT credit, losses and unabsorbed depreciation as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
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NOTE 39 - Employee benefits

A) Defined contribution plan
The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. Under these plans, the Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs.
Group's contribution to provident fund & family pension scheme recognized in statement of profit and loss of Rs. 18.65 crores (previous

year Rs. 1.72 crores) [included in refer note 33].
B} Defined benefits plans

The Group has a defined benefits gratuity plan {funded). The Group defined benefits gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which
requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The scheme is funded with the insurance companies in the form of a
qualifying insurance policy.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who hasvéompleted five years of service is
entitled to specific benefits. The leve! of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefits expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity.

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

a) Liability recognised in the balance sheet

(B

(in)

(ifi)

b)

Change in the obligation during the year ended

Present value obligation as at beginning of the year

Present value obligation acquired on account of reverse acquisition (refer note 45)
Interest costs

Past service costs

Current service costs

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations

Present value obligation as at end of the year

Change in fair value plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year

Fair value of plan assets acquired on account of reverse acquisition (refer note 45)
Expected return on plan assets

Less: FMC charges

Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

Amount recognized in balance sheet consists of

Present value obligation as at end of the year assets/(liability)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

Unfunded net asset/ (liability) recognized in balance sheet

Amount recognized current liability
Amount recognized non-current liability (net of plan.assets)
Total

Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss
Current service costs

interest costs

Total

66.06

4.48

5.93
(7.98)

(9.20)
59.29

33.56

2.10
0.47)
1.38
(7.85)
29.02

(59.29)
29.02
(30.27)

1.15
28.12
30.27

5.93
2.21

8.14

58.67
3.99

6.77
(4.80)
1.23

66.06

3131
2.30
(0.31)
4.78
(4.52)
33.56

(66.06)
33.56
(32.50)

297
29.53
32.50

6.76
1.86
8,62




Piombino Steel Ltd
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

(Rs. in Crores)

For the year ended |For the year ended

Re-measurement (gain)/ loss recognized in other comprehensive income 31 March 2022 . 31 March 2021

Actuarial gain/ (loss) arising from changes in demographic assumptions S - _

Actuarial gain/ (loss) arising from changes in financial assumptions 2.91 (3.84)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) arising from changes in experience adjustments 6.29 2.60
Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on assets (0.35) (0.13)
Recognized in other comprehensive income 8.85 (1.37)
c) Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) (in %) 7.18 6.79
Rate of increase in compensation levels (in %) 8.00 8.00
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 18.67 19.20
Weighted average duration (years) 15.40 15.70
d) Expected contribution for the next annual reporting period
Service costs 6.65 7.50
Net interest costs 217 221
Expected expense for the next annual reporting period 8.82 9.71
e) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefits obligation
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the period 59.29 66.06
i} Impact due to increase of 0.50% (3.47) (3.63)
ify Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 3.78 3.96
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the period 59.29 66.06
i} Impact due to increase of 0.50% 3.67 3.82
ify Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (3.42) (3.55)
Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated. Sensitiviies as rate
of increase of pensions in payment rate of increase of pension before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable.
Maturity profile of defined benefits obligation (year)
a)0to 1 year . 1.15 297
b) 1 to 2 years 1.12 2.44
c) 2 to 3 years 242 2.02
d) 3 to 4 years - 2.12 235
e) 4 to 5 years 2.90 2,32
f) 5to 6 years 2.85 2.91
g) 6 year onwards : 46.73 51.05
f) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors. The above information is as certified by the actuary.
g) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated
term of the obligations.
h) The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefits obligation
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
i) - Description of risk exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Group is exposed to various
risks as follow -
a) Salary increases- actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future
valuations will also increase the liability.
b) Investment risk — If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment retum on assets lower than the discount rate
assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability. .
c) Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
d) Mortality & disabllity — actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the
liabilities.
e) Withdrawals ~ actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact plan’s liability. :
C Other Employee benefits

Compensated absences: The Group pemmits encashment of compensated absence accumulated by their employees on retirement,
separation and during the course of service. The fiability in respect of the Group, for outstanding balance of leave at the balance sheet
date is determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date performed by an independent actuary.
The Group doesn’t maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation towards compensated absences. During the year amount recognized
in statement of profit and loss of Rs. 0.35 crores {previous year Rs. 7.31 crores) [included in refer note 33].
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NOTE 40 - Financial instruments
40.1 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entity will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the retum to stakeholders through the

optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Group (comprising issued

capital, reserves and retained earnings).

The Group prepares projections via annual business plan and capex business plan to plan the capital structure and the outflow. The Group monitors its
capital gearing ratio, which is net debt, divided fo total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,
bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and current investments.

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Borrowings 7,128.87 16,058.92
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (549.29) (2,817.14)
Less: Other bank balances (575.78) (161.21)
Net debts (A) 6,003.80 13,080.57
Equity 6,092.92 1,667.29
Other equity (including money received against share warrants) 4,873.81 2,251.51
Total equity (B) 10,966.73 3,918.80

Gearing ratio (A/B)

0.55

3.34

40.2 The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument and their carrying amount are set out below:

{Rs. in Crores)

As at 31 March 2022

Fair value through

: - other Fair value Total carrying
Particulars Amortised cost . through profit Total fair value
comprehensive value

N and loss

income
Financial assets
Investments - - 1.60 1.60 1.60
Loans 2.01 - - 2.01 2.01
Trade receivables 1,139.69 - - 1,139.69 1,139.69
Cash and cash equivalents : 549.29 - - 549.29 549.29
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 575.78 - - 575.78 ' 575.78
Other financial assets 211.51 - - 211.51 211.51
Total 2,478.28 - 1.60 2,479.88 2,479.88
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 7,128.87 - - 7,128.87 7,128.87
Lease liabilities 10.97 - - 10.97 10.97
Trade payables 3,564.09 - - 3,564.09 3,564.09
Other financial liabilities 581.15 - - 591.15 591.15
Total 11,295.08 - - 11,295.08 11,295.08

*Borrowings include current maturities of long term borrowings

40.2 Categories of financial instruments

{Rs. in Crores)

As at 31 March 2021

Fair value through

Particul Amorti other Fair value Total carrying .
articulars mortised cost comprehensive through profit value Total fair value
k and loss
income
Financial assets
Investments - - 1.41 1.41 1.41
Loans 1.29 - - 1.29 1.29
Trade receivables 779.87 - - 779.87 779.87
Cash and cash equivalents 2,817.14 - - 2,817.14 2,817.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 161.21 - - 161.21 161.21
Other financial assets 86.53 - - 86.53 86.53
Total 3,846.04 - 1.41 3,847.45 3,847.45
Financial liabilities .
Borrowings 16,058.92 - - 16,058.92 16,058.92
Lease liabilities 10.93 - - 10.93 10.83
Trade payables 803.35 - - 803.35 803.35
Other financial liabilities 184.66 - - 184.66 184.66
Total 17,057.86 - - 17,057.86 17,057.86

*Borrowings include current maturities of long term borrowings
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NOTE- 41 Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial
assets and other financial liabilities (other than those specifically disclosed) are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

(Rs. in Crores

Fair values Fair values Valuation
Particulars as at as at Level technique and
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 key inputs
Current Investments
Quoted bid price
Investments in quoted mutual funds measured a FVTPL 1.60 1.41 1 in an active

market

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period,

NOTE- 42 Financial risk management

The Group's principal financial liabilittes comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations .The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash
and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Group's senior management ovérsees the management of risks, The Group's senior management provides assurance to the Group’s
Board that the Group’s financial risk activities are govemned by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and suggest changing
in policies for managing each of these risks.

The risk management policies aim to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instrument:

- Interest rate risk

- Currency risk

- Commodity price risk

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

NOTE- 42.1 Interest rate risk )
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the: Group’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
The following table provides a break-up of the Group's fixed and floating rate borrowings:

(Rs. in Crores)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Fixed rate borrowings 2,690.18 5,402.73
Floating rate borrowings 4,500.00 10,799.22
Total gross borrowings - 7,190.18 16,201.95
Less: Upfront fees . (61.31) (143.03)
Total borrowings (refer note 22) 7,128.87 16,058.92

Interest rate risk sensitivity
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate liabilities, after the impact of
hedge accounting, assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates by 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows :

(Rs. in Crores)

As at As at

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Particulars

+ 100 basis points (45.00) (107.99)
- 100 basis points 45.00 107.99
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Note- 42.2 Foreign currency risk

The Group's functional currency is Indian rupees (INR). The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies;
consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an
exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

Currency exposure as at 31 March 2022

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars UsD EURO Others INR Total
Assets
Investments - - - 1.60 1.60
Loans . - - - 2.01 2,01
Trade receivables 337.56 0.40 - 801.73 1,139.69
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 549,29 549,29
Ban}( balances other than cash and cash N N . 575.78 575.78
equivalents
Other financial assets - - - 211.51 211.51
Total Assets 337.56 0.40 - 2,141.92 2,479.88
Liabilities :
Borrowings - - - 7128.87 7,128.87
Lease liabilities - - - 10.97 10.97
Trade payables* 716.89 28.95 - 2,818.25 3,564.09
Other financial liabilities - - - 591.15 591.16
Total liabilities 716.89 28.95 - 10,549.24 11,295.08
*Trade payables includes creditors for capital goods
Currency exposure as at 31-March 2021

(Rs. in Crores
Particulars UsD EURO Others INR Total
Assets
Investments - - - 1.41 1.41
Loans - - - 1.29 1.29
Trade recelvables 142.17 0.67 - 637.03 779.87
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 2,817.14 2,817.14
Ban'k balances other than cash and cash 011 B N 161.10 161.21
equivalents
Other financial assets - - - 86.53 86.53
Total Assets 142,28 0.67 - 3,704.49 3,847.45
Liabilities
Borrowings - - - 16058.92 16,058.92
Lease liabilities - - - 10.93 10.93
Trade payables™ 16.88 13.89 0.54 772,05 803.35
Other financial liabilities - - - 184.66 184.66
Total liabilities 16.88 13.89 0.54 17,026.56 17,057.86

* Trade payables includes creditors for capital goods

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currencies . 1% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables
held constant. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where INR strengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For
a 1% weakening of INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on profit or equity, and the balances below would

be negative
(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars Increase (Strengthening of INR) Decrease {(Weakening of INR}
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Assets
USD/ INR 3.38 1.42 (3.38) (1.42)
EURO/ INR 0.00 0.01 (0.00) (0.01)
Liabilities
USD/ INR (7.17) 0.17) 7.17 0.17
EURQ/ INR (0.29) (0.14) 0.29 0.14
The forward exchange contracts entered into by the Group and outstanding are as under:
US§ Equivalent | INR Equivalent MTM
As at Nature No. of contracts Type (Millions) {crores) (" in crores)
Assets 5 Buy 124.22 953.29 6.14
1
31 March 2022 Liabilities 8 Sell 219.42 1686.51 (14.62)
Assets - Buy - - .
31 March 2021 Liabilities - Sell - - -
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NOTE- 42.3 Commodity price risk

The Group’s revenue is exposed to the market risk of price fluctuations related to the sale of its steel products. Market forces generally.

determine prices for the steel products sold by the Group. These prices may be influenced by factors such as supply and demand,
production costs (including the costs of raw material inputs) and global and regional economic conditions and growth. Adverse changes in
any of these factors may reduce the revenue that the Group earns from the sale of its steel products.

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in prices for the purchase of iron ore, coking coal, ferro alloys, zinc, scrap and other raw material
inputs. The Group purchased primarily all of its iron ore and coal requirements at prevailing market rates during the year ended 31 March
2022.

The Group aims to sell the products at prevailing market prices. Similarly, the Group procures key raw materials like iron ore and coal based
on prevailing market rates as the selling price of steel products and the prices of input raw materials move in the same direction.

NOTE- 42.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with_ creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterat, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Group is exposed to credit risk for trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investments, other bank balances, loans, ‘and other
financial assets. .
Moreover, given the diverse nature of the Group's business, trade receivables are spread over a number of customers with no significant
concentration of credit risk. No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the trade receivables in any of the years presented. The
history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful debts. Therefore, the Group does not expect any material risk
on account of non-performance by any of the Group’s counterparties.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. :

Movements in allowance for credit losses of receivable is as below:
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 2213 -
Additional allowance during the year 10.11 2213
Utilized during the year 22.13 -
Total 10.11 22.13

" For current investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. This, therefore,
results in diversification of credit risk for Group’s mutual fund.

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 1,930.59 crores as
at 31 March 2022 and Rs. 1,030.31 crores as at 31 March 2021, being the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with bank,
bank deposits, current investments, loans and other financial assets.

Receivables are deemed to be ‘impaired after 90 days. The credit period on the sale of goods ranges from 7 to 80 days. The Group has
made the provision based on ttie policy for trade receivables and no material loss on its trade receivables is expected for credit loss (‘ECL").

Where receivables have been impaired, the Group actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with credit
terms.

In addition, the Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantees given-to banks provided by the Group. The Group's
maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Group could have to pay if the guarantee is called on. Based on the
expectation at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it Is more likely than not that such an amount will not be payable

under the guarantees provided.
For all other financial assets, if credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment

loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used.

NOTE- 42.5 Liquidity risk .

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation
where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements, The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities.



Piombino Steel Ltd

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

(Rs. in Crores)

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars < 1 year 1.5 years > 5 years Total
Financial Assets
Investments 1.60 - - 1.60
Loans 1.78 0.23 - 2.01
Trade receivables 1139.69 - - 1139.69
Cash and cash equivalenis 549.29 - - 549.29
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 575.78 - - 575.78
Other financial assets 55.04 156.45 0.02 211.51
Total | 2,323.18 156.68 0.02 2,479.88
Financial liabilities )
Borrowings 0.00 7128.87 0.00 7128.87
Lease Liability 2.04 8.93 10.97
Trade payables 3564.09 ; 0.00 0.00 3564.09
Qther financial liabilities 349.99 241,16 0.00 591.15
Total 3,916.11 7,378.96 - 11,295.08
(Rs. in Crores)
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars < 1 year 1-§ years > 5 years Total
Financial Assets
Investments 1.41 - - 1.41
Loans 0.38 0.91 - 1.29
Trade receivables 779.87 - - 779.87
Cash and cash equivalents 2,817.14 - - 2,817.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 161.21 - - 161.21
Other financial assets 2,76 83.77 - 86.53
Total 3,762.77 84.68 - 3,847.45
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 13,290.36 2,768.55 16,058.91
Lease Liability 1.53 9.40 - 10.93
Trade payables 803.35 - - 803.35
Other financial liabilities 180,11 4.55 - 184.66
Total 984.99 13,304.32 2,768.55 17,057.86
Collateral

The Group has pledged part of its trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfill certain collateral requirements for the
banking facilities extended to the Group. There is obligation to retum the securities to the Group once these banking facilities are

surrendered.

NOTE- 43 Segment reporting

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Jron & Steel products having similar economic characteristics, with
operations primarily in India which is regularly reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker for assessment of Group's

performance and resaurce allocation.

The Group has identified one primary business segment i.e. , manufacture and trading

Information about geographical revenue and assets

a) Refer note 29 for information about geographical revenue.

b) Non cumrent assets

All non current assets of the Group are located in India

¢) Customer contributing more than. 10% of revenue

of iron & steel products.

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

NOTE- 44 Disclosure pertaining to micro and small and medium enterprises (as per information available with the Group)

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act,

2006,

Principal amount outstanding as-at the year end
Interest due on above and not unpaid as at year end
Interest paid to suppliers

Payment made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable for the year of delay

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year




Piombino Steel Ltd

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

NOTE- 45 Business combination
a. Pursuant to the initiation of corporate insolvency resolution process, the resolution plan submitted in respect of the Group by

JSW Steel Ltd (“JSW” and such plan, “Resolution Plan”) was approved by the Hon'ble National Group Law Tribunal ("NCLT")
with certain modifications, vide Order dated 05 September 2019 (“NCLT Order”). JSW preferred an appeal against the NCLT
Order, which was allowed by the Hon'ble National Group Law Appellate Tribunal ("NCLAT") vide its Order dated 17 February
2020 (“NCLAT Order"). The erstwhile promoters of the Group, certain operational creditors and the Directorate of Enforcement
have preferred various appeals before the Hon'ble Supreme Court (“SC") against the NCLAT Order (‘SC Appeals”), which are

presently pending for adjudication.
Pending adjudication of the SC Appeals, on 26 March 2021, JSW Steel completed the acquisition of BPSL by implementing the

resolution plan approved by NCLT basis an agreement entered with BPSL’s committee of creditors that provides an option/right
to the JSW Steel to unwind the transaction in case of unfavorable ruling on certain specified matters by Hon'ble Supreme Court.

Effective from 01 April 2020 (being “Appointed Date”), Makler Private Limited ("SPV") which has raised share capital and debt
financing to acquire the business of the Group and to discharge its liabilities of financial creditors; has merged into the Group.
For the purposes of Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations”, SPV has acquired the control of the Group, its business and its
assets and liabilities from appointed date and the said merger has been accounted as “reverse acquisition” as prescribed under
Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations”.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the purchase consideration had been aliocated on a provisional basis in accordance with
ind-AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’. Pending final determination of fair value of the asseis and liabilities acquired, the Group
had recognized capital reserve amounting to 3,410 crores on a provisional basis with the option of reassessing the fair values
during the measurement period. .

During the measurement period, which is ending during the year 2021-22, the Group has reassessed the allocation of purchase
consideration based on the fair valuation of assets and liabilities acquired based on reports obtained from the independent
The reassessment inter-alia, included revisions to the fair value of Property plant and equipment (excluding land) based on
business valuation, reversal of claims recoverable from deallocated mines and revaluation of liabilities. Accordingly,
corresponding adjustments were made to the provisionally accounted fair values of assets and liabilities and the same has
resulted in recognition of capital reserves of Rs. 825 crores as on the acquisition date.

Accordingly, the Group has restated comparative balances as on acquisition date i.e. 01 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 to
reflect the final acquisition- date fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities.

Details of fair value of assets and liabilities assumed on 01 April 2020 and computation of Capital Reserve arising on reverse
acquisition:

(Rs. In Crores)

Particulars i As At
25th March 2021

Assets Provisional Final

. 17,769.59 | 15,064.16
Property, plant and equipment (Incl. CWIP, ROU asset & Intangibles)
inventories 2,294.35 2,292.46
Trade receivables 739.55 739.55
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) 2,624.81| 2,633.40
Investments (Inc. Bank FD) 129.50 130.89
Others assets : 526.91 574.92
(A) 24,084.70] 21,435.37
Liabilities .
Trade payables 861.28 796.28
Others liabilities 463.40 462.60
(B) - 1,324.68 1,258.88
:‘gtal;‘degt;ﬂable net assets acquired at fair value 22.760.02] 20,176.49
Purchase Consideration 19,350.00] 19,350.00
Capital reserve arising on reverse acquisition = (A-B) 3,410.02 826.49




Piombino Steel Ltd ) ‘
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

. West Waves Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from
November 24, 2021, upon acquisition of its entire equity shareholding from Magnificient Merchandise and Advisory Services
Private Limited for a premium of Rs. 9.17 per share. The Company had earlier availed financial assistance from West Waves
Maritime & Allied Services Private Limited amounting to Rs. 2500 crores in relation to the acquisition of the Bhushan Power and
Steel Limited. .

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on the January 19, 2022 considered and approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation pursuant to Section 233 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, providing for the merger of
its wholly owned subsidiary West Waves with the Company. The Regicnal Director of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Western
Region vide order dated May 6, 2022 approved the scheme of amalgamation of West Waves with the Company. Pursuant to
receiving all the necessary regulatory and other approvals, West Waves merged with the Company with effect from December
1, 2021. Accordingly, the Company had accounted for the merger under the pooling of interest method as prescribed in Ind AS
103 — Business Combination of entity under common control.

Below are the details of the book value of assets and liabilities taken over as on November 30, 2021 and computation of capital
reserve arising on merger:
(Rs. In Crores)

Particulars Amount
Assets

Loans 2,500.00
Other financial assets 185.59
Trade receivables 0.01
Cash and cash equivalents 0.03
Other current assets 30.90
Total (A} - 2,686.53
Liabilities

Borrowings 2,500.00
Other financial liabilities 155.34
Trade payable T ‘ 0.01
Other financial liabilities 0.01
Other current liabilities 30.38
Total (B) 2685.74
Total identifiable net assets acquivred at book value :
(C=A-B) 0.79
Investment (D) : 0.31
Capital reserve on merger (C-D) 0.48
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

NOTE - 46 Commitments & contingent lfabilities

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at

Asat

a} Capital commitments

31 Mareh 2022

31 March 2021

Estimated amount of ining to be d on capital account and not provided 1,425.86 90.44
for (net of advances of Rs, 85.10 crores (previous year Rs. 21.07 crores )
b) Contingent liabilities
Claims zgainst the Group not acknowledged as debt ing interest, if any)
- Land transfer fees demand by Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation of Odisha 28.81 -
Limited (IDCO), Bhubaneswar for issue of No Objection Certificate (NOC) for Mortgage right
permission.
- Others 0.52 0.54
Notes: :

1) The erstwhile promoters and certain operational creditors of Bhushan Power And Steel Ltd, subsidiary of Piombino Steel Limited and the directorate
of enforcement have preferred various appeals beforé the Hon'ble Supreme Court {*SC") against the NCLAT Order ("SC appeals”), which are presently

pending for adjudication,

2) Amounts payables under the resolution plan towards govemment dues and contingent creditors have been recognised in accordance with the

certificate obtained from supervisory agent appointed.

3) Other pending litigations comprise mainly claims against the Group, proceedings pending with Tax and other Authorities. The Group has reviewed all
its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever

in its financial

4) Also refer note 45 for implementation of resolution plan.

NOTE 47 Related Party disclosures
A Name of related parties having transactions during the year and description of relationship

1 Parent Company
JSW Steel Limited (w.e.f. 01 October 2021}

2 Subsidiary Company
West Waves Maritime & Alfied Services Private Limited
(upto 23 November, 2021 upto 30 November 2021 and subsequently merged with the Company)

3 The investing party in respect of which the reporting enterprise is a joint venture
JSW Steel Limited (with effect from 27 March, 2021, upto 30 September, 2021)

JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (with effect from 27 March, 2021, upto 30 September, 2021)

4 Other Related Parties
B M M Ispat Limited
Everbest Consultancy Services Private Limited
GSI Lucchini S.p.A (upto 30 September 2021)
Jindal Saw Limited
Jindal Stainless Limited
Jindal Steel & Power Limited
JSW Cement Limited
JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited
JSW Global Business Solutions Limited
JSW Infrastructure Limited
JSW International Tradecorp Pte Limited (w.e.f. 01 October 2021)
JSW Ispat Special Products Limited
JSW Jharkhand Steel Limited
JSW Paints Private Limited
JSW Paradip Terminal Private Limited
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited (upto 30 September 2021)
JSW Techno Projects Management Private Limited
Asian Colour Coated ispat Limited (upto 30 September 2021)
JSW M Steel Service Center Private Limited
JSW Steel U.S.A Ohio Inc (upto 30 September 2021)
Vardhman Industries Limited (upto 30 September 2021)
West Waves Maritime & Alfied Services Private Limited (upte 23 November, 2021)
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited (with effect from 01 October, 2021)

4 Fellow subsidiaries {w.e.f. 01 October 2021)
JSW Steel Coated Praducts Limited
Asian Color Coated Ispat Limited
JSW Vallabh Tinplate Private Limited
GSI Lucchini S.p.A
JSW Steel U.S.A Ohio Inc
Vardhman Industries Limited

5 Directors and Key M fal P | | Designation

Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta (with effect from 01 December, 2021) Non-independent Non-Executive Director
Mr, Anil Kumar Singh (with effect from 01 December, 2021) Non-independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Divyakumar Bhair (with effect from 01 December, 2021) Non-Independent Non-Exacutive Director
Mr. Anunay Kumar (with effect from 01 December, 2021) Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (with effect from 01 December, 2021) Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Bhushan Prasad {upto 01 December, 2021) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sundeep Jain (upto 01 December, 2021} - Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sriram K.S.N, (upto 01 December, 2021) Non-independent Non-Executive Director
Mr, Kaustubh Kulkami (with effect from 18 January, 2022) . Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Mohit Goyal (with effect from 19 January, 2022) - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Alok Kumar Mishra Group Secretary
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Piombino Steel Ltd

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

NOTE- 48 Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group's significant leasing/ licensing arrangements are mainly in respect of guest house / office premises and leasehold land. Leases run in a range from 24
months for office premises and 1080-1188 months for leasehold land . The Group previously used to classify leases as operating or finance leases based on its

assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group.

The Group also has certain leases of warehouse / guest houses / office premises with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of printers of low value. The Group

applies the ‘'short-term lease' and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 11.36%.

The leases that the Group has entered with lessors are generally long-term in nature and no changes in terms of those leases are expected due to the COVID-19.

A. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at .
31 March 2021

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (Included in other expenses)
Variable lease payments (Included in other expenses)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

1.20 0.92
12.23 0.01
- 3.18
0.50 0.96
13.93 5.07

B. Amount recognised in .the statement of cash flow

(Rs, in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Interest component
Lease component

1.20
1.16

0.01
1.68

C. Maturity analysis of lease liability

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Maturity analysis - undiscounted
Less than one year
More than One year

2.04 1.89
8.39 8.53
10.43 10.42°

D. Movement of lease liability

(Rs, in Crores)

Particulars

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions of lease liabilities

Termination

Interest accrued

Payment of [ease liabilities

Balance as at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
10.93 -
- 11.38
1.20 1.23
{1.18) (1.68)
10,97 10,93

{Rs. in Crores)

Lease liability included in balance sheet

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

- Current
- Non current

2,04 1.53
8.93 9.40
10.97 10,92

E. Movement of right of use assets

{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars Leasehold Land |Leasehold Building Total

Gross block

As at 01 April 2020 - - -
Additions pursuant to acquisition 921.39 1.42 922,81
As at 31 March 2022 921.39 1.42 922,81
Additions - - -
As at 31 March 2022 921.39 1.42 922.81
Accumulated Depreciation

As at 01 April 2020 - - -
Depreciation for the year 11.52 0.53 12.05
As at 31 March 2022 11.52 0.53 12,08
Depreciation for the year 11.52 0.71 12.23
As at 31 March 2022 23.04 1.24 24.28
Net block

As at 01 April 2021 909.87 0.89 910.76
As at 31 March 2022 898.35 0.18 898.53
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Piombino Steel Ltd
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

NOTE- 50
During the year, the Group has changed its inventory measurement policy from FIFO to weighted average method, to align with the group policy.
Due to the same the value of closing inventory has reduced by Rs. 51.10 crores.

NOTE- 51

The President has given his assent to the Code on Social Security, 2020 (“Code”) in September 2020. On 13 November 2020 the Ministry of
Labour and Employment released drafi rules for the Code. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The
Group will assess the impact once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact to its financial statements in the period in which

NOTE- 52 Other statutory information
i} The Group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami
ii) The Group does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off except the following:

(Rs..in Crores)

Balance outstanding
Name of the company Nature of transactions with As at As at
company
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Fuchs Lubricants (India) Private Limited Purchase of spares 0.23 0.42
Sharma Contracts (India) Private Limited Purchase of spares 0.02 0.02
R.V.Briggs & Co. Private Limited Purchase of spares * 0.03
Minwool Rock Fibres Limited Purchase of spares * -
BPDP Trading Private Limited ** Sales of products 0.01 0.01
CBS Steel Private Limited ** Sales of products - 0.29
Everest India Private Limited ** Sales of products 0.01 0.01
Himalayan Eco Farms Private Limited ** Sales of products 0.02 0.02
Himatsu Bimet Limited ** Sales of products - 0.13
J.S. Engg. Projects Private Limited ** Sales of products - 0.02 -
Neo Containers Private Limited ** Sales of products - 0.06
Panchshree Steels Private Limited ** Sales of products * *
R.R Autotech Private Limited ** Sales of products ) 0.22 0.21

* Less than Rs. 50,000

** Fully provided

iii) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
iv) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

v) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the lntermedlary shall) drrectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Group (ultimate beneficiaries) or b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

vi) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the- understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries.
vii) The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961,
viii) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Compames (Restriction
on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
ix) The Group is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or lender during the year.

x) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
accounts.
xi) The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpase for which it was taken as at Balance sheet
date.



Piombino Steel Ltd
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022

NOTE- 53 Additional information, as required under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 of entities consolidated as Subsidiaries.:

. Net Assets, .., total assets minus Share in other comprehensive | Share in total other comprehensive
Name of the entity total liabilities Share in profit or loss income (Ogl) Income (OCI P

As % of consclidated As % of consolidated As % of As % of consolidated

net assets Amount profit or loss Amount | o colidated 0cl | AmOU™ total OCI Amount

Parent . " B : e -
Piombicno Steel Ltd. 26% (2,828.17) -10% (421.64) - - -10% (421.64)
Subsidiary
Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd. 126% 13,794.90 110% 4,440.82 100% 8.85 110% 4,449.67
Total ) 100% 10,966.73 100% 4,020,18 100% 8.85 100% 4,028.03

Details of Subsidiary

Effective % of Shareholding as

Country of Incorporation on 31.03.2022

Name of the Company

Nature of operation/business

" 100%

Bhushan Power & Stesl Ltd. India

Manufacturing of fron and steel
products.

NOTE- 54 Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, 1o confirm with the current period classification in comply with requirements of the

amended Schedule !I! to the Companies Act, 2013 affected from April 1, 2021,

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Kaustubh Kulkarni
Chief Executive Officer

Divyakumar Bhair
Director

DIN: 08568679
Place : Mumbai

Parth P Patel

Partner

Membership No.: 172670
Place : Mumbai

Alok Kumar Mishra

Company Secretary

1CS| Membership No. ACS 15967
Place :Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: May-24, 2022

Anil Kumar Singh
Director

DIN: 02059803
Place : Mumbai

Mohit Goyal
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai




PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED

JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018P1.C374653

AGM NOTICE

Notice Is hereby given that the 04" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
Piombino Steel Limited will be held on Tuesday, June 28, 2022 at 11:30 am at the
registered office of the Company situated at 6th Floor, JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai ~ 400 051, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements (Audited Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow
Statement) for the year ended 31st March, 2022, together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. Appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh (DIN 02059903) as a Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
relevant provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable
laws, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh (DIN 02059903), who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from 01.12.2021 by the Board of Directors
pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and who holds office upto the date of this Annual
General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of
Mr. Anil Kumar Singh for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as
a Non-Executive, Non Independent Director of the Company, whose period of
office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

3. Appointment of Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN 08568679) as a
" Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pUrsuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 201 4-mchud!




PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED NS

JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
. Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
relevant provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable
laws, Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN 08568679), who was appointed as
an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 01.12.2021 by the Board
of Directors pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who holds office upto the date of
this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the
candidature of Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair for the office of the Director, be
and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive, Non Independent Director of the
Company, whose period of office will be liable to determination by retirement of
directors by rotation.

. Appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta (DIN 02339000) as a Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company. :

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: -

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
relevant provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable
laws, Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta (DIN 02339000), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect from 01.12.2021 by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, as recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and who holds office upto the date of this Annual
General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of
Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed
as a Non-Executive, Non Independent Director of the Company, whose period of
office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

. Appointment of Mr, Anunay Kumar (DIN 01647407) as a Director of the
Company, in the category of Independent Director.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution: :

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act™) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) and Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable laws, Mr.
Anunay Kumar (DIN 01647407), who was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company in the category of Independent Director with effect from 01.12.2021

by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, a5t i ymended by
O 28aN
e }‘:gffféf, A5



PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED @

JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 -
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, from a
member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold office for a term upto five years commencing with effect from
01.12.2021.

6. Appointment of Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (DIN 07138042) as a Director of the
Company, in the category of Independent Director.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act™) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) and Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable laws, Dr.
(Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (DIN 07138042), who was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company in the category of Independent Director with effect from 01.12.2021
by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, as recommended by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, from a
member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold office for a term upto five years commencing with effect from
01.12.2021.

By Order of the Board
For Piombino Steel Limited

ek

Place: Mumbai Alok Kumar Mishra
Date: May 24, 2022 ' Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No.: A-15967




PIOMBINO STEEL LIMITED

JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Ph No: +91 22 4286 1000. Fax: +91 22 4286 3000
CIN: U27320MH2018PLC374653

NOTES:

i, MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. '

The instrument(s) appointing the proxy, if any, shall be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 by not less than forty-eight (48) hours before
the commencement of the Meeting and in default, the instrument of proxy shall
be treated as invalid. Proxies shall not have any right to speak at the meeting.

2.  Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and
bring their Attendance Slip along with their copy of the Annual Report to the
Meeting.

3. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals ./ HUF, NRI,
etc.) are required to send a scanned certified copy (PDF/JPG Format) of their
Board or governing body’s Resolution/Authorisation, authorising their
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM and vote on their behalf.

4, The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting
out the material facts in respect of the business under Item Nos. 2 to 6 set out
above and clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting ($5-2)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the
persons seeking appointment/ re-appointment as Director at the AGM, is
annexed hereto.

5. Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to write their
DP ID and Client ID number(s) and those who hold share(s) in physical form
are requested to write their Folio Number(s) in the attendance slip for attending
the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the Meeting.

6. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of
‘Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in
the Notice will be available for inspection at the Registered office of the
Company during all working day from 11.00 AM to 1.00 P.M till the date of Annual
General Meeting.

7. Every member entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
can inspect the proxies lodged at the Company at any time during the business
hours of the Company during the period beginning twenty= (24) hours

etml Meeting and
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ending on the conclusion of the meeting. However, a prior notice of not less
than three (3) days in writing of the intention to inspect the proxies lodged
shall be required to be provided to the Company.

Route Map for the venue of the meeting is annexed to this Notice.
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for Item Nos. 2
to 6 of the accompanying notice is as under:

ITEM NO. 2

Mr. Anil Kumar Singh (DIN 02059903), on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 01.12.2021
by the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
(The Act).

As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Anil Kumar Singh holds office upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing under Section
160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Anil Kumar Singh to-
be appointed as a Non-Executive Director at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Anil Kumar Singh has consented to the proposed
appointment and Company has received declaration under Section 164(2) of the Act
from Mr. Anil Kumar Singh. '

Mr. Anil Kumar Singh possesses the requisite skills, knowledge and experience for the -
position of Director. The Board on the receipt of the said Notice from a member and
on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to
approval of members in ensuing Annual General Meeting, has accorded its consent to
appoint Mr. Anil Kumar Singh as a Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation.
Mr. Anil Kumar Singh will not be entitled for any remuneratlon as per the Company
policy for Non-Executive Director.,

Except Mr. Anil Kumar Singh, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise
in the proposed resolution. The Board of Directors recommend passing of Resolution
set out in Item No. 2 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 3

Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair (DIN 08568679), on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed as an Additional Director
w.e.f. 01.12.2021 by the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (The Act). |
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'rotation. Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta will not be entitled for any remuneration as per the -
Company policy for Non-Executive Director.

Except Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives thereof are interested or concerned financial or
otherwise in the proposed resolution. The Board of Directors recommend passing of
Resolution set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice.

ITEM NO..5

Mr. Anunay Kumar (DIN 01647407), on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of
Independent Director w.e.f. 01.12.2021 by the Board of Directors in accordance
Articles of Association of the Company and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
(The Act).

As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Anunay Kumar holds office upto the date of ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing under Section
160 of the Act from a member pro/posing the candidature of Mr. Anunay Kumar to be
appointed as Independent Director at the ensuing Annual General Meeting not liable
to retire by rotation. Mr. Anunay Kumar has consented to the proposed appointment
and Company has received declaration under Section 164(2) of the Act from Mr,
Anunay Kumar.

Mr. Anunay Kumar possesses the requisite skills, knowledge and experience for the
position of Independent Director. The Board on the receipt of the said Notice from a
member and on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and subject to approval of members in ensuing Annual General Meeting, has accorded
its consent to appoint Mr. Anunay Kumar as an Independent Director not liable to
retire by rotation. Mr. Anunay Kumar will not be entitled for any remuneration as per
the Company policy for Independent Director except sitting fee for attending Meeting
of Board and Committees.

Except Mr. Anunay Kumar, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise
in the proposed resolution. The Board of Directors recommend passing of Special
Resolution set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 6
Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain (DIN 07138042), on the recommendation of Nomination and

Remuneration Committee was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of
Independent Director w.e.f. 01.12.2021 by the Board of Direg Fsi_accordance
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As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair holds office upto the
date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mr.
Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair to be appointed as a Non-Executive Director at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Divyakumar
Vimalkumar Bhair has consented to the proposed appointment and Company has
received declaration under Section 164(2) of the Act from Mr, Divyakumar
Vimalkumar Bhair.

Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair possesses the requisite skills, knowledge and
experience for the position of Director. The Board on the receipt of the said Notice
from a member and on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and subject to approval of members In ensuing Annual General Meeting,
has accorded its consent to appoint Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair as Non-
Executive Director liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair will
not be entitled for any remuneration as per the Company policy for Non-Executive
Director. :

Except Mr. Divyakumar Vimalkumar Bhair, no other Director and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives thereof are interested or concerned
financial or otherwise in the proposed resolution. The Board of Directors recommend
passing of Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 4

Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta (DIN 02339000), on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f, 01.12,2021
by the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
(The Act).

'As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta holds office upto the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing under
Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Manoj Kumar '
Mohta to be appointed as a Non-Executive Director at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta has consented to the
proposed appointment and Company has received declaration under Section 164(2) of
the Act from Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta.

Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta possesses the requisite skills, knowledge and experience for
the position of Director. The Board on the receipt of the said Notice from a member
and on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject
to approval of members in ensuing Annual General Meeting, has accorded its consent
to appoint Mr. Manoj Kumar Mohta as Non- i ' rAiahiesto retire by
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Articles .of Association of the Company and Section 161 of the Comvpanies Act, 2013
(The Act).

As per Section 161 of the Act, Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain holds office upto the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing under
Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi
Jain to be appointed as Director in the category of Independent Director at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting not liable to retire by rotation. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain
has consented to the proposed appointment and Company has received declaration
under Section 164(2) of the Act from Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain.

Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain possesses the requisite skills, knowledge and experience for the
position of Independent Director. The Board on the receipt of the said Notice from a
member and on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and subject to approval of members in ensuing Annual General Meeting, has accorded
its consent to appoint Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain as Director in the category of Independent
Director not liable to retire by rotation. Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain will not be entitled for
any remuneration as per the Company policy for Independent Director except sitting
fee for attending Meeting of Board and Committees.

Except Dr. (Mrs.) Rakhi Jain, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise
in. the proposed resolution. The Board of Diftectors recommend passing of Special
Resolution set out in Item No. 6 of this Notice.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE

FORTH COMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Pursuant to Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard-2)

since November

Name of the |Mr. Anil Kumar Mr. Mr. Manoj | Mr. Anunay | Dr. (Mrs.)
Director Singh Divyakumar | Kumar Mohta Kumar Rakhi Jain
Bhair
Date of Birth 12.05.1965 03.10.1980 26.01.1971 10.04.1946 | 21.04.1969
Date of first 01.12.2021 01.12.2021 01.12.2021 01.12.2021 | 01.12.2021
Appointment
on the Board .
Qualification Bachelor's in Chartered Commerce Mechanical Doctorate in
Civil Accountant Graduate and | engineer with | Home Science
Engineering and Bachelor |Fellow member|Post Graduate from
from NIT of of Institute of | diploma in University of
Jamshedpur Commerce Chartered Business Delhi
and Accountants of | Management.
Executive India
MBA with
unique
distinction .
Experience/ |He is an industry |Mr. Divyakumar{ Mr. Mohta More than Post-
Expertise in  |veteran with over| Bhair is having worked in 50 years’ graduation-
specific three decades of jover 17 years of premier experience in | Community
functional experience experience in corporate- design, Resource
areas/Brief in critical and the field of |houses in India| engineering | Management
resume of the | pivotal positions Corporate for over 27 and project [and Extension.
Director in reputed Finance, Project| years and has | management
‘ organizations. He Finance, gained very rich| in India and
has been Strategic professional | abroad out of
instrumental and Finance, experience in | which more
- driving force in Mergers & the fields of |than 15 years
completing all |Acquisitions and|  Corporate has been at
strategic Turnaround Finance, Board level in
greenfield and | Strategy. He Treasury, public and
brownfield has been in JSW Taxation, private
projects in Group since last, Corporate sectors.
' various units of | 11 years and | Strategy, M&A,
JSW Steel Ltd. has been Procurement,
well ahead of involved in Secretarial,
time, budget with| various long- |Legal, and other
highest quality term fund allied functions.
standards. raising and Presently
large-scale |associated with
acquisitions. JSW Group

2004
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Relationship

related to any

related to any

related to any

related to any

Terms & Tenure as a Tenure as a Tenure as a Five years Five years
conditions of Director is . Director is Director is w.e.f, - weelf
appointment /| subject to subject to subject to 01.12.2021 | 01.12.2021
re- retirement of retirement retirement
appointment Directors by of Directors | of Directors

rotation in by rotation by rotation

terms of in terms of in terms of
Section 152 Section 152 Section 152
of the of the of the

Companies Companies Companies

Act, 2013. Act, 2013, Act, 2013.
Details of NIL NIL NIL NIL except NIL except
remuneration sitting fee sitting fee
isought to be
paid and
remuneration
last drawn.
Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL except | NIL except
proposed sitting fee sitting fee
Disclosure of Not inter-se Not inter-se Not inter-se | Not inter-se | Not inter-se

related to any

with other other Director, or| other Director, | other Director, |other Director,|other Director,
Directors, Key Managerial or Key - or Key or Key or Key
Manager and | Personnel. The Managerial Managerial Managerial Managerial
Key Company does | Personnel. The | Personnel. The |Personnel. The|Personnel. The
Managerial not have a Company does | Company does {Company does|Company does
Personnel of Manager. not have a not have a not have a not have a
he Manager. Manager. Manager. Manager.
Company.
Number of 2 out of 2 2 out of 2 2 out of 2 2 out of 2 2 out of 2
meetings of :
the Board of
Directors
attended
during the F.Y.
2021-22
Other Rohne Coal JSW Living |JTPM Atsali Ltd;|JSW Paints Pvt| B.M.M. Ispat
Directorships Company Pvt |Private Limited;| Rohne Coal Limited; JSW | Limited; JSW
held as on Limited; JSW |Bhushan Power| Company Pvt Jharkhand Aluminium
31.03.2022 Jharkhand Steel |& Steel Limited; Ltd; JSW Steel Limited; | Limited; JSW
Limited; Peddar |ISW Steel Italy | Holdings Ltd;. Bhushan Techno
Realty Pvt S.R.L.; ISW Echelon Power & Steel Projects
Limited; Bhushan| Steel USA Ohio | Properties Pvt Ltd; Management
Power & Steel Ltdl  Inc; Acero Ltd; JSW GMR imited; JSW
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Junction Cricket Pvt Ltd; |  Process Projects
Holdings Inc; |JSW Sports Pvt| Teknologies Limited;
Periama Ltd; Sahyog Pvt Limited Bhushan
Holdings LLC; | Holdings Pvt Power & Steel
JSW Steel Ltd; Gopal Ltd
(USA) Inc  |Traders Pvt Ltd;
Vasind Farm &
Dairy Products
Pvt Ltd; Vividh
Finvest Pvt Ltd;
JSW
Multiventures
Private Limited
Chairman/Me |Audit Committee Audit Stakeholder Audit Audit
mbership of |member- Committee Relationship Committee Committee
Committees inBhushan Power & Chairman - Committee |member- member-
other Indian Steel Limited Bhushan Power | Member - JSW [Bhushan Bhushan
Public Limited & Steel Limited Holdings Power & Steel Power & Steel
Companies as Limited Limited Limited
on 31.03.2021 BMM ISPAT
(C= Ltd.
Chairman; M = JSW Projects
Member) Ltd.
JSW Techno
Project Ltd.
JSW
AAluminium
, Ltd.
Shareholding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

in the
Company.

*only two Committees namely, Audit Committee, Stakeholders Reiationship
Committee have been considered.
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